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Financial and Operational Highlights B #{EE ¥R E

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified)

(UBEBETREN BEFZHN

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of
the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debits to total
equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables (excluded

bills receivable — intra-group trade)

to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)

Net assets per share (HK cents)

Return on total assets (%)

Return on turnover (%)

Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)

Dividend yield (%)

Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China

Total
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Notes 2015 2012
Wi —B-5F —g--%
(Restated)  (Restated)
(&1&zT)  (FF15ET)

9,322 9,860 11,251 13,766 11,862

773 668 734 938 1,135

6,320 6,187 6,170 5,886 5,522

9,999 9,727 12,313 13,436 12,260

0.6 0.6 1.0 13 1.2

03 0.3 0.6 0.6 0.6

23 24 1.7 15 1.6

36 33 30 29 29

73 70 67 72 91

457 448 453 432 406

1.7 6.9 6.0 7.0 9.3

83 6.8 6.5 6.8 9.6

1 37 22 15 31 58

2 1,163 1,079 1,165 1,51 1,803

12.5 10.9 10.4 11.0 15.2

3 56.0 43.9 53.9 68.9 84.5

56.0 48.0 40.0 50.0 53.0

4 19 5.8 49 53 6.4

1,382 1,382 1,364 1,361 1,361

648 676 680 805 785

10 352 571 731 700

15,740 16,499 19,196 22,950 22,770

16,398 17,527 20,447 24,492 24,255




Financial and Operational Highlights B iEE 2K HE

Notes:

1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and

tax by the interest expenses.

2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.
3. Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting

period.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for
each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the

Group as at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement FfEREE

In this financial year, global economy was still volatile. The U.S., which
was the Group’s primary market, had only slight economic

improvement. Consumer demand in mainland China was still weak.

The Group's total turnover declined by 5.5% to HK$9,322 million. Net
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders increased by 15.7% to
HK$773 million.

Rising production cost in the PRC and fluctuations in price of raw
material were the major difficulties for the textile business. The Group
had to focus on high value-added orders to capture reasonable profit
margins. Stringent cost control measures had also achieved notable
results.

The retail business gained much improved performance. Sales growth
of comparable shops was upto 6.0% and operating profit was back to
a positive level. The Taiwan operation was closed and store
consolidation in the PRC was also completed. The business is in a
healthy position with good ability to enhance further improvement.

The U.S. consumer sentiment has shown signs of improvement. The
recent orders are much positive. The PRC domestic economy will also
gain growth momentum under the government stimulative policies. |
am quite optimistic on the performance of the Group in the coming
financial year.

The Group is celebrating its 40th anniversary. It has been due to the
great support of our business partners and shareholders, the
devotedness of our colleagues that the Group has been able to grow
continuously. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank them
earnestly.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2015
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it & 2 47

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s total turnover
decreased by 5.5% to HK$9,322 million (2014 : HK$9,860 million). Net
profit for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$773 million (2014 : HK$668 million), a
growth of 15.7%. The Group's gross profit margin was 34.1% (2014 :
33.3%), an increase of 0.8 percentage points from last year. In the
period, other income and gains decreased by HK$48 million mainly
attributable to the drop in gain on foreign exchange derivatives, on
revaluation of investment properties and disposal of properties. Net
profit contributed by an associate also decreased by HK$28 million.
The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK30.0 cents (2014 :
HK25.0 cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total
dividend per ordinary share would be HK56.0 cents, an increase of
16.7% from last year’'s HK48.0 cents.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business decreased by 6.1% to HK$4,718
million (2014 : HK$5,026 million). The amount represented 50.6%
(2014 : 51.0%) of the Group’s total turnover. Raw material prices were
quite stable in the period. Operating environment was a bit more
favourable than the previous year. The Group continued to focus on
high value-added orders to capture reasonable profit margins. The
gross profit margin rose to 21.7% from last year’s 20.4%. The average
selling price increased by 3.0%. The performance and the key financial
ratios of the business were as below:

(Amounts expressed in HK$’million, unless specified)

%i%IEIEE

BZE —REE=ZA=Z+-BLEAFHREE K
%lzw"—%%ETEXS.S%i%MaQZE%n(_
T—NF:BHIB0EET) AQAFEZEESR
FEERERFEFEFENBBEINREET(Z
T—NF:BHe8EBE L) BRI15.7% - K&
E2EMNEH341%(ZF —MUF :333%) &
EFLAOSEEME - HR HRARKET
BBBISEBETTEHRNIMNESTEIR - BEY
E¥SHREEVENRSE TR - BHEEAQ
AENBESATHREE 28FET ESSEBIK
BAHREE L ERBEI00MU(ZE—MEF:
BE25.01L) c ERFEHIRE  BEBERKRELTE
%%%%om’h£$2%M%nm1Hw7%o

HEER

PEER CEEBETR6I1%EBHA7T1I8EE T
(ZE—NF . BEB5026H8T) - kBB ABAXE
B AEELE2506%(ZF—MMF :51.0%)° &
BEERBARAEBE LERBEBREFEMR
Z-AEEASEIREMMETEULZTNEGER
Me BERNERAEF 2204% EHE21.7% - ¥
ERERLEAZ0% HERIXRBREITEHHK
EEBIIRT :

(UEBEEETAEN BRERZHI) —-mE
Net sales HEFH 4,718 5,026 5,460 6,976 5,971
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 21.7 20.4 16.0 14.8 20.4
Operating profit (note 1) EEFREHF) 622 671 546 692 908
EBITDA (note 1) E B EREH

BIFDE (et 1) 802 871 765 916 1,137
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWGE(%) (HF2) 8.5 8.4 6.3 6.4 8.3
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWR=(%) (Fit2) 15.3 14.3 124 10.7 14.6
Return on equity (%) (note 2) R W iR = (%) (Mfat2) 12.8 12.8 11.2 13.4 17.4
Capital expenditure ERMEZH 56 121 45 57 80

Notes : BtEE -

(1) Exclude interest income and rental income.

2) Exclude rental income.

(0 TEEHERARHEZUA -

@  TEEEZRA -
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it & 2 7

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E A6 )
Retail and distribution business BERDHEER

Sales of the business amounted to HK$4,591 million (2014 : HK$4,816 |t ¥ B E FHE A B AN EET(ZE— N
million), a decrease of 4.7%. The sum was 49.2% (2014 : 48.8%) of the & : B¥4816BE ) WP 47%  LH B A&
Group's total turnover. Over the last few years, the Group has closed a S B4 & 25§ 2 49.2% (== — I & : 48.8%) ©
significant number of non-performing stores and exercised tight BEHFE XEBCBEBATAPRBIEZIES
control over inventory levels. Though the consumer sentiment in the EERBEIEHFEKF - HAPBEREHEESD
mainland China was still sluggish, the business achieved much {JAR%E LWEBNESHBELS KRB - AL IEH
improved performance. Sales growth of comparable shops restored to  $§ERE L ZEREE 2 B7.6%E EZ6.0% °
6.0% from last year’s negative 7.6%.

The performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as HE2B>XBERFIEHVEHLEHIINT :
below :

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as (a) XBERERTIEHHELERBEIHNOT :

follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$’million, unless specified) 2015 2014 2013 2012
(UBMEETAE N  BRIEFFHEI) -1 —E-NF ZE-=F ZFB--F
Net sales HEFEE 4,591 4,816 5,768 6,766 5,857
Gross profit margin (%) ERZE(%) 46.8 46.7 449 44.8 47.1
Sales growth of comparable AJLE JE 85 &
shops (%) (note 1) BRI Z=E(%) (K1) 6.0 (7.6) (12.0) 2.9 13.8
Operating profit/(loss) EEFRE,(FB)
(note 2) (Hfat2) 13 (245) (202) 157 407
EBITDA (note 2) B Bl -EREBHEN
R (K a£2) 113 (107) (52) 276 495
Return on total assets mEERREE
(%) (note 3) (%) (Ht&£3) 0.7) (13.9) (7.6) 3.2 12.5
Return on sales HEWRZ R
(%) (note 3) (%) (HtE3) (0.3) (5.2) (3.0) 1.3 5.0
Return on equity ERRER
(%) (note 3) (%) (B33) @.1) (42.5) (20.4) 9.0 38.6
Capital expenditure EARMR 72 43 119 192 109
Notes: BT -
(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during M AL EFIERZFRAG —F 2 FEE
the year and the preceding year. HYJEH ©
(2)  Exclude gain on disposal of properties, interest income and rental @ TEEFHEDFE N - FIERAREZHKA -
income.
(3)  Exclude rental income. B FEIFHELKA -

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Management’s Discussion

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued)

(b)

the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

(HK$’million)

(B EET)

Baleno I fE B%
S&K S&K

I.P. Zone I.P.Zone
ebase ebase
Others Hih
Total &3t

(9]

the development in different markets was as follows:

Mainland China

Net sales (HK$” million)
Increase/(decrease)

HEFHOEEABT)

in net sales (%)

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** TEEEmE(FHR)*
Number of sales associates** & ¥ S8 **
Number of outlets*2 I E *2

Hong Kong

Net sales (HK$’ million)

Increase/(decrease)

HEFROEEBET)

in net sales (%)

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREEE(FHR)*
Number of sales associates** & EEH *#
Number of outlets** FmEE *

HEFE2E M CAD)

HEFE 2B M CAD)

and Analysis EEE 2wk 2

¥ O E)
BERSHER(E
(b) BREBRBHEEINOT:

2012 2011
—E--F —E—-F
2,821 2,754 3,038 3,653 3,089
476 552 742 940 846
320 417 555 699 643
336 497 609 682 548
638 596 824 792 731
4,591 4,816 5,768 6,766 5,857

(0 HBHWERRBERWOT !

B K BE
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-N§ —T-=F “T--F “E--F%
4,014 4,098 4,920 5,811 4,987
(%)
(2) 17) (15) 17 22
1,700,135 1,959,394 2,147,536 2,368,260 2,162,123
6,971 7,710 9,168 11,492 11,348
2,865 2,928 3,424 3,576 3,482
BB
2013 2012 2011
2= B —B——&
486 445 435 460 465
(%)
9 2 (5) (1) 12
62,440 66,184 63,254 61,722 54,960
393 392 425 493 482
59 66 68 70 63
EXREEEERAT —ZE—HFER



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it & 2 7

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

() the development in different markets was as follows:
(continued)

Taiwan

2015

¥ O E)
BERSHER(E
© SETEREBRAOT (&)

2014 2013 2012

—¥-1f “2-NF Z2-=F “F--F

Net sales (HK$’ million) EEFHEEKEET) 91 273 413 495 405
Increase/(decrease) SHEFEZEM, D) (%)

in net sales (%) (67) (34) 17) 22 8
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** TEBE@E(FHR)* — 90,689 142,079 151,218 135,734
Number of sales associates** &S EH ** — 290 488 638 608
Number of outlets * FAmEAR* — 91 166 181 161
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIRERAR
# For self-managed stores # BEE

Including self-managed and franchise stores

Garment manufacturing business

Turnover of this associate decreased by 10.3% to HK$1,185 million
(2014 : HK$1,321 million). Net profit contribution to the Group
amounted to HK$34 million (2014 : HK$62 million), a drop of 45.2%.
The operating environment was less favourable in the year mainly due
to global consumer demand weakness. In the year, 70.7% (2014 :
69.1%) of the fabric consumed was supplied by the textile division and
sales to the retail division represented 19.6% (2014 : 15.4%) of its

turnover.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 2.3, HK$1,907 million and -0.4 (2014: 2.4, HK$1,869
million and -0.3) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of
the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and bank balances, to the
total equity. The net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
was HK$865 million (2014: HK$965 million).

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 37 times, 36 days and
73 days (2014: 22 times, 33 days and 70 days) respectively. The Group
mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow from its
operating activities and bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash
and bank balances, the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company and the unutilised banking facilities were HK$4,372
million, HK$6,086 million and HK$6,553 million (2014: HK$4,024
million, HK$5,956 million and HK$5,191 million), respectively.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it & 2 47

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$128 million (2014: HK$164 million). The capital expenditure
incurred by the textile business for the year was HK$56 million (2014:
HK$121 million) mainly for the addition of plant and machinery. For
the retail and distribution business, our capital expenditure incurred
for the year mainly for the renovation of shops was HK$72 million
(2014: HK$43 million).

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014 have been set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and YEN
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within three years. At the
year end, the cash and bank balances amounted to HK$4,372 million
(2014 : HK$4,024 million) were mainly denominated in RMB and USD
and were placed as fixed deposits with well-established financial
institutions at fixed interest rate with maturity due within one year.
As the US economy continues to recover, the interest rate is expected
to rise moderately in the year to come. The Group will continue to
monitor the interest rate movement and arrange financial instruments
to reduce its interest rate risk whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had about 16,400 (2014: 17,500)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

B B AR R (4#)

EARMLZH
TEEBREAFREAMEIHABEI1288E T (=
T—NF:BEIMEER) HBEKLFEE
AL HABBESeEBE T (ZE—NFE  BHEI121
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RO#BERFHA ANFREAMEZHABE2E
BErx(ZTE-—NE: BERBEHEERT)  TEARS
EEHNER-

BEEENR
R-ZE-HEF=ZRA=+—-HRZZE-WF=ZR=
tT-H AEEREEC/HFER -

ZEEE
R-EB-—HEF=ZR=+—-HBR-Z-MNF=ZA=
T-HENREEERACEN T HRRME34
A e

B 5 R AR
FEBERBEREERREEERREER
B AEBTENIRRTERRFTEMNBT
EXRAXTEFT ER=ZFANINHP-RER R
ERBTEREHRBELIINABEL(ZE -
FBWA04BERL) TERAREBRER
YEERFERNESHEBFE-—FAIBNEE
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it & 2 7

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, the Group also encourages its employees,
customers and business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities
with a view to developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1) World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

(3) Agency for Volunteer Service “HSBC Share-to-Care Volunteer
Campaign”;

(4)  HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2014;

(5)  Sowers Action;

(6) Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong; and

(7)  St. James Settlement.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporates and the
government. Therefore, the Group will continue to invest resources in
all major social, educational and environmental protection activities to
strive for a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

Economic conditions in the U.S. are improving. Recent orders for the
textile business are quite positive. The Group will closely monitor the
market developments to adjust its business strategies.

The PRC consumer sentiment has shown signs of recovery. The retail
business is in a healthy status to pursue further performance
improvement.

Looking forward to the coming year, the Group is confident to attain
improved results.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; the retailing
and distribution of casual apparel and accessory; the provision of
franchise services; the provision of repair and maintenance services for
motor vehicles and properties investment. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 70 to 180.

An interim dividend of HK26.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 7
January 2015. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK30.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the Register of Members of the Company on 19
August 2015. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the

equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) BEERBE®)
Results E¥

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E2-1F —T-NF —F-=F “E--f “Z2—-F%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BEFT EETT BEFr BEFxn
(Restated) (Restated)

(&15aT)  (&f5ET)

REVENUE 'ON 9,322,316 9,859,613 11,250,843 13,765,827 11,861,780
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R0 A i A 858,248 707,007 740,014 1,128,219 1,459,584
Income tax expense | (85,717)  (117,555) (59,251)  (161,560)  (200,231)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 772,531 589,452 680,763 966,659 1,259,353
Attributable to: BB
Ordinary equity holders of FAREBESR
the Company REE 773,293 668352 734,229 938,186 1,135,040
Non-controlling interests FiERER (762)  (78,900)  (53,466) 28,473 124,313

772,531 589,452 680,763 966,659 1,259,353

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling Interests EE -AEHEFERER

As at 31 March

=A=t-8H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1f —E-NF ZE-=F ZT--F —F—-F

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT EEFT BEFTT BT EBETn
(Restated) (Restated)

(B&fEa])  (f5aT)

TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 9,999,169 9,727,009 12,313,156 13,436,323 12,260,041
TOTAL LIABILITIES Hwe s (3,679,337) (3,539,865) (6,142,701) (7,550,343) (6,738,305)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS I 4% IR XS (233,616)  (230,673)  (308,121)  (322,628)  (280,037)

6,086,216 5,956,471 5,862,334 5,563,352 5,241,699

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and construction in progress of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 13, 14 and 16 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set
out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2015, the Company'’s reserves available for cash distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$4,155,868,000 of which
HK$414,509,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$703,365,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$867,000 (2014: HK$1,655,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

ME- BERRE RENERERT
2
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13+ 14K 16 °
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i 1R
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R-EBE-—HF=A=+—8 > FA2aA#ERS
R/ B IKZ 1% B 5 % 4,155,868,000 7T -
H R AR FERERE BB 414,509,000
JC o b4 - AN D T B AN {8 BR 8 %5 703,365,000 7T
TAUBRARTRTFUDIK
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RER AEBWNWESIBRE LB 1867,000T
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)

Poon Kei Chak (Executive Vice Chairman) (resigned on 1 June 2015)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Poon Ho Wa (resigned on 1 April 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 66, is the executive chairman of the Group
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 43 years’ experience in the
textile field.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 62, is the executive vice chairman of the
Group and a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. He joined the
Group on its establishment in 1975 and has more than 40 years’
experience in the field. He is responsible for the purchases, sales and
management of the Group. He resigned as the executive vice chairman
and executive director on 1 June 2015 due to the reach of the age of
retirement.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 59, is the chief executive officer of the
Group. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Wa, aged 37, is a nephew of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr.
Poon Kei Chak, all of whom are executive directors of the Company.
He is responsible for helping the management of the textile business
and production development. He joined the Group in 2002 and has
extensive experience in the investment banking industry. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in management from The London School
of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Poon Ho Wa resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 1 April 2015 and remains as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 69, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008)
and a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is a former deputy chairman of
The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and
a former council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 65, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 57, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he
possesses extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and
private equity. Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980
with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in April 2011.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 60, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. He holds a Master's degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15
years’ experience in retail operations and MIS management.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management (continued)

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 52, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a
Master's degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has more than 28 years’ experience in
auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 58, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 60, is the managing director of Nice Dyeing
Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged in the sale of
finished knitted fabric and dyed yarn. He joined the Group in 1994
and has more than 41 years’ experience in the textile industry.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EENEREEBAEBE®)

BREEANE (E)
REELEE A+ -m FAEEVNBERERAF
ME-BR-—ANELEMALTEE -REEFHE
BENFERETAZENELENV AT ES
FAMAEEREERBNEFHLAEEE KA

BEA-+TNFHNEAHSFER-

HEMREE At \B AEEZEEBES-
R-AAREMAREB A  HELECAER
“HEZEXLER-

IRBEE SNtB AEERSHBTREYD
HEZHMBARKERFEERADESHLE -
BR—-—NAANEMALER FEEAN+ —F4

EERROREBEROZEER KA

RZZ-AF=ZRA=1+—H A2AREES
REMERMIED2RMEFNETH A RE
(EHRRAERETESIZNRETAN(RE
TJANBRAARARBEIA SESERAQRAR
HB2rm(ERR(EZRBERMD) EXVED)
WRORMEERG 2EESRKXBWOT

Number of shares held and capacity

ERBERSH

Directly or
beneficially

owned
BEER
BXER

Name of director

EEHER

Through
discretionary
trust corporations

ey

=5t

Through
controlled

Percentage of the
Company'’s issued
share capital
BERQTE
ERTRABHE

ERE

YN

Executive directors: HITES:

Poon Bun Chak BWE 36,888,000 170,700,104 456,450,000 664,038,104 48.1

Poon Kei Chak EHOE 12,977,200 — 31,922,000 44,899,200 33

Ting Kit Chung THER 6,100,000 — — 6,100,000 0.4

Poon Ho Wa B 200,000 — — 200,000 0.0

Independent BIEHT

non-executive directors: BE:

Au Son Yiu ERAE 300,000 — — 300,000 0.0

Cheng Shu Wing B ES 400,000 — — 400,000 0.0
56,865,200 170,700,104 488,372,000 715,937,304 51.8

EXREEEERAT —ZE—HFER
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 170,700,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc as a trustee for The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust which was founded by Mr. Poon Bun Chak. Mr.
Poon Bun Chak is deemed to be interested in these shares in accordance
with the SFO.

2) The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in which
Farrow Star Limited has a 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85% interest in
Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

3) The 31,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International Holdings
Limited, which is jointly owned by Mr. Poon Kei Chak and his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in the Company granted to any directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FTERREREMATRKRS REE
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES iR 17 R =

At 31 March 2015, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued RZ-ZZBE—FEE=A=+—H UTHEEAXAFD
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests ~ ¥{TRAS% R E 2 CRB(ESERBE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the {&fHI)E336KR EXLH N AR A BRENESR

SFO: i
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARBEBRZHR

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share

Capacity shares held capital

BEERE GEXAREHIT

564 IR B =R

Perfection (PTC) Inc Trustee 2,3 627,150,104 45.4
ZFEA

Farrow Star Limited Through controlled corporation 1 456,450,000 33.0

EEEHLE

Directly owned 170,700,104 12.4
HEESR
3 627,150,104 45.4
Giant Wizard Corporation Directly owned 1,2 456,450,000 33.0
HEES
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment manager 93,414,000 6.8
and its associates REKRE
Notes: WaE -
1. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 1. Giant Wizard Corporation#¥ & 2K 2 5] 2 #& 3 EFarrow
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Farrow Star Star Limited Bl #2152 Bl 2 #m GIHES ©

Limited.

2. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 2 Giant Wizard Corporations B 7 22 & 2 # &= H
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection Perfection (PTC) IncEi 1215 EA R Al EHEE -
(PTC) Inc.

3. The interests of Farrow Star Limited in the Company were duplicated by 3. Farrow Star Limited 575 7k 23 &] 2 #& 2 £ Perfection (PTQ)
the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection (PTC) Inc. InciZEFBEARRNAZ BB OHES °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no person, other than B LEXFEEEN R-ZFT-—HF=ZA=+—
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the B > #EAT(RALCIESHEZCHARIE
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and ZRBROREEROZEZRAEIN RAQF
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short KM HEEKRHF EEEERB(EFRHBEKR
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was  BI)583361& FURRHEZEZR KA °

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below,
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in accordance
with relevant clauses of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rules 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person:
On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"”), a company controlled and
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin
Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of two years commencing from 1 April 2014 at the monthly
rents of RMB1,045,000 for the first year and RMB1,150,000 for
the second year.
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Report of the Directors EEE &

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

2)

3)

Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person:

On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s
Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2014 at
the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected
person:

On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 42078,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and a parking space from
WLEL as a training center of the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2014 at the monthly rent of
HK$63,200.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s

total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this

report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2015
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been
adopted to shape our corporate governance structure. This report
describes how the principles of the CG Code have been applied during
the year ended 31 March 2015 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2015, the Board comprised of seven members. The four
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
Mr. Ting Kit Chung and Mr. Poon Ho Wa. The three independent non-
executive directors (“INEDs") included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin.

Subsequent to this financial year, Mr. Poon Ho Wa has resigned as an
executive director with effect from 1 April 2015. Mr. Poon Kei Chak
has resigned as an executive director and executive vice chairman with
effect from 1 June 2015.

Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr. Poon Kei Chak are brothers. Mr. Poon Ho
Wa is a nephew of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr. Poon Kei Chak.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with

Clause 87 of the Company’s bye-laws.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership for
the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group's business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and Qualification of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of its
Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Role of the Board
The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the

executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(M

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and
interim reports, and make judgments that are fair and
reasonable in the preparation of the Company’s disclosure
statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance with
the CG Code, including the determination of the Group’s
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring
of the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports form Audit Committee.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors

BE=

Executive directors HTES
Poon Bun Chak EWE
Poon Kei Chak BHOE
Ting Kit Chung THAR
Poon Ho Wa BIEE
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing SR 15t 28
Law Brian Chung Nin B

A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board Process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to
discuss in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings
are prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and
are open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are

allowed to seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular board
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2015. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

=

Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak BWIE
Poon Kei Chak EHOE
Ting Kit Chung THR
Poon Ho Wa B E
Independent non-executive directors BYKHITES
Au Son Yiu ELR
Cheng Shu Wing BB 181 28
Law Brian Chung Nin EME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have
been approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms
of reference of each board committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(@)  monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)  monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the
Group;

() monitoring the performance of the Group's internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of
the Group.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
March 2015 to review the followings:

(a) the internal controls and risk management of the Group;

(b) the financial reporting process and the financial statements of
the Group; and

(c) the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEERE

Law Brian Chung Nin EMHEF
Au Son Yiu EAE
Cheng Shu Wing =18
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well as
the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his/her associate will

be involved in the determination of his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
directors’ fee as well as the remuneration and performance bonus of

executive directors and senior management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMEEERE

Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing EEEES
Law Brian Chung Nin BMF
Ting Kit Chung THE

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director,
namely Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessing independence of INEDs.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience; to review and recommend the re-appointment of directors
standing for re-election at the Company’s 2014 annual general
meeting; and to assess independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
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REMRHE BTEBERE

BREZEGRE

Cheng Shu Wing BRAE 8
Au Son Yiu B
Law Brian Chung Nin EMHEF
Ting Kit Chung THRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; and reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the financial year,
except for the following deviation:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chairman considers the chief executive officer a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the chief executive
officer has been serving for similar duties for many years and he
has good understanding of each operating segment of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,
they have all complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION

The details of the directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements contained in this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for
facilitating the board process, as well as communications among board
members, with shareholders and management. The Company
Secretary’s biography has been set out in the “Biographical details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of the “Report of the
Directors”. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade
his skills and knowledge.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2015, fees paid for audit and non-
audit services by the Company to its principal external auditors were

as follows:

Services

BR %%

Audit services rendered ERMEEFT RS
Review of continuing connected EHEFEBRERS

transactions

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on page 68 to 69.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy of its
accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and ensure
the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is
responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal controls of
the Company. During the year, the internal audit team, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the internal controls of
each major operating segment of the Company and has reported its
findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and Audit Committee are
satisfied with the effective internal controls of the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of
reprisal or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”), a
summary of this policy, together with the measureable objectives set
for implementing this policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below:

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
annually in the Corporate Governance Report and monitor the
implementation of this Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee
will review this Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five directors. Three
of them are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterized by significant
diversity, whether considered in terms of age, experience, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders who is/are (i) representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or (ii) not less than 100 members holding shares in the
Company, is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued) RERER &)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by RERBRRASEZEZZNEF (E)
Shareholders (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the REBERESEZUIHIEZEZNEREZERNEER
shareholders concerned, together with a statement with respect to KM ETEEZRIADNATMMPWEE - KX27TR
the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the EZEEWRFRER  EHERNEETERELEHLE
registered office of the Company. The Company would take Z#H BEEREERELATLEEIIRIOKAESTE
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the (JETZETHRTHFEENE X -
shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses

incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements

under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents

are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH REEMARERRBEE
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well asour EfHHERFURBRZEFHERHEBEERLT
many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst ensuring B#HZXENEZEEFN BREREBEENRETSE
that relevant information is equally and simultaneously provided and REZEBHALEFEEBEA LT AATCHEMER
accessible to all interested parties. The Company has adopted a HEEMBERATRREUTEEEREE UWEHRE
Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the below BZ2EAATER  TEMNBENEBRTTERSE
communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them to | -

engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as

shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM”) to (1) KRB ERBEALHEBRFREE OWEBRER
explain results of the Company and answer questions of NEXEEBENBEREWREE,
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according (2) ZEBEBEAIRIEL ORRERATER
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the (3) HESKEE®H WHELAATER K
Company; and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the (4) RAATPLEAGLAEBESS  BHBRE
results of the Group on the Company’s website. BEBZER -

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to AAFFEERABREERAEXINEER KRR
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions BEEAS2EIERETEBINESEIRHERRZE
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee, T - BFZREESC - FHMEZEESTRIEZZEESTHK
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attendthe ENFSHERRBFASUEZERR ZIEM -
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details
of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises
his power under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed
resolution to the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting
a poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the day of the AGM.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making Enquiries to the Board
The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to
contact the Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I,
223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel. (852) 2610 7116 / (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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SECTION 1: ABOUT THIS REPORT

Businesses today are operating in a world undergoing unprecedented
environmental and social changes. Global climate change, rapid
population growth and rising living standards present significant risks
but also offer major business and growth opportunities for Texwinca
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

These challenges pose many dilemmas for companies. In reconciling
these dilemmas, the Group aims to go “beyond business as usual”. We
strive to bring textiles and fashion to the world in a manner which is
both environmentally and socially conscious. All of our brands, work
hard to offer textiles and fashion at great value, whilst guided by
principles of social responsibility, sustainable development and our
own corporate values. We are committed to reducing our
environmental impact, improving the safety of our workplace, whilst
continuing to deliver quality products and services.

Reporting Standard and Scope

This Environmental Social Governance (“ESG") section of our Annual
Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx"), in-line
with recommended practice for all Hong Kong listed companies. This
is our first annual ESG Report, it describes the initiatives of the Group
and its progress with regard to ESG issues for the period of 1 April
2013 to 31 March 2015. For simplicity, year “2014" and year “2015" in
this report represent the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2015 respectively.

The following entities were chosen for inclusion in this ESG Report
because of their significant contributions to the Group, thus making
them an ideal proxy for the Group’s textile manufacturing and apparel
retailing businesses:

Textile manufacturing
Texwinca Holdings Limited
Dongguan Texwinca Textile & Garment Limited
(collectively referred to as “Texwinca”)

Apparel retailing
Baleno Holdings Limited
Guangzhou Friendship Baleno Co. Ltd.
(collectively referred to as “Baleno”)

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 1: ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard and Scope (continued)

All numerical data within this report is presented as absolute figures
and all financial data is expressed in Hong Kong Dollars, unless
otherwise specified. Our emissions have been calculated in accordance
with the guidelines laid down by the Environmental Protection
Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

A detailed ESG content index has been included at the back of this
report to aid the reader and facilitate greater transparency. Additional
ESG performance information including financial data and corporate
governance information can be found elsewhere in this Annual
Report.

This ESG report section has been approved by the senior management
team of the Group. We would like to extend our deepest thanks to all
those who contributed to this report and to our strong ESG
performance.

Contact Information

Please feel free to share any comments or suggestions you may have
related to this report by contacting Investor Relations Department at
the address included below:

Investor Relations Department, Texwinca Holdings Limited
16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I,

223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,

New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: IR@texwinca.com

Stakeholder Engagement

With reference to international guidelines on ESG reporting, HKEx
encourages reporting organizations to better understand the
expectations, perceptions and concerns of their stakeholders.
Accordingly, in support of preparing the Group’s 2015 ESG Report and
determining the issues that are most material to the Group, we
engaged members of the Group’s sustainability working group in
Dongguan, Guangzhou as well as Hong Kong. These individuals were
selected based on their relevance to and understanding of the Group'’s
business and sustainable development.

During one to one interviews and focus group discussions, participants
were invited to share their views on ESG issues facing the company’s
operations and provide accounts of actions taken to manage and
mitigate these issues. Outcomes of these engagements served to guide
the content of this report and provide a snapshot of the company’s
ESG performance.
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SECTION 1: ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Material Aspects for Disclosure

In order to provide a concise, balanced and clear view of the
company’s ESG performance, the Report focuses only on sustainability
issues material to the company, highlighting the challenges and
successes faced over the reporting period.

To determine these material issues as well as the scope and boundaries
of this report, third-party consultants were commissioned. These
consultants were brought in to carry out boundary scoping and
materiality assessments, along with an independent engagement
exercise with key internal stakeholders from across the Group. The
report also takes into account industry and location specific ESG issues
as well as global trends. Material issues and reporting content were
derived based on the following steps:

Step 1: Benchmarking ESG Reporting Practice

o To identify industry standard Aspects for ESG disclosure we
analyzed the ESG/Sustainability Reports of 16 of the Group’s
local and international industry peers (Nine apparel retailing
and seven textile manufacturing companies)

o A determination regarding whether an Aspect was material was
made based on the frequency of disclosure among the selected
peer group companies

. The analysis relies on the assumption that the frequency of
disclosure is related to and reflective of materiality

Step 2: Stakeholder Engagement
o Stakeholder preference is a critical factor when deciding what
Subject Areas/Aspects should be covered in the ESG Report

o Key internal stakeholders were asked to rank the 11 HKEx
reporting Aspects and 32 Key Performance Indicators according
to their importance to the Group and their stakeholders

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 1: ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued) S8 BARAR®RE @)

Material Aspects for Disclosure (continued) WEEXEDT (&)

Step 3: Determine Material Aspects SHEI3 EIEAREER

. Summary rankings from both the stakeholder engagement and o BEERNESHERBEEENHEEZHBEN
peer group benchmarking were compiled to determine the BEERERENEEMS

importance of the particular Aspect

o A materiality matrix was prepared by translating the results e EBERBESHESHNERZ2IRY
from the stakeholder engagement into coordinates on the BoOMAREBEEREENE R MXE 2L
Y-axis and from the peer group benchmarking on the X-axis REEEMER

. The material Aspects for reporting were then identified by e BRENEXRBENDEBEANEEMEEH
Aspects appearing in the top-right hand corner of the &AL AR

materiality matrix

o Material Aspects were finally determined by the Group’s senior e EABERABAEBRSREEE R

management, who considered the results of the materiality o BEZEINEEMTGENERESE
assessment in-line with potential business impact ESS-21

BAEEEERLIA —ZE-AFH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE HEREREBE

SECTION 1: ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Material Aspects for Disclosure (continued)

The Materiality Matrices below provide a list of current ESG priorities
within both sectors of the business: textile manufacturing and apparel
retailing. Concerns presented toward the top-right hand corner of the
matrix were considered of being the highest importance to the Group
and our stakeholders while those located towards the bottom-left
hand corner of the matrix represented concerns of a relatively lower
importance.

Materiality Matrices

MEEM

=]

Importance to Texwinca
HiEKEMS

Medium Priority B X E

Low Priority &R/XE

E—8BRARE @)
BEEXEE (4)
THNWEEHEEREBFOMETE: HAR
WERBESE RUANNRSE HEREA
BERFY -ERRFRE EANBEISERRA
HAKERRANBEAEMSERERSE Min
ETALRNEIEERYMSEEHRE

EEMER

High Priority R8%

Importance to Stakeholders

HEHEMSNERM

WEZEM

=
=

Medium Priority )X E

Importance to Baleno

EE =N}

Low Priority X E

High Priority R8%

Importance to Stakeholders

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 HEEMHEMSHWEEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
m 43z R
RIE HERERRE
FoH O RERGESE
R —EHE RMEETERRRERESEE-
KMEBRETERSRBUTEHE  FRMEET
EERARWM - UTRERBEDTSHEMNWEE
ACREEZFHFURMERBERBENRE -

o
B /R

SECTION 2: AWARDS AND CORPORATE MEMBERSHIPS

As an organisation we take our environmental and social
responsibilities very seriously. We actively engage with industry
associations and government to ensure we stay at the forefront of
developments in our sector. The following awards demonstrate
market recognition for our corporate governance, investor relations,

and our social and environmental performance.

Organisation

A

Abercrombie & Fitch Trading Co.
Consumer Testing Laboratories, Inc
Gap Inc.

Kohl’s Department Stores

PVH Far East Limited

Tommy Hilfiger U.S.A Inc.

Uniglo

BIKE

VF Asia Limited

Control Union Certifications

EHBBER

Control Union Certifications

& I B B R R

nIP

Dongguan Economy & Information Technology Bureau

EmEBNEECR

Government of Dongguan Machong

RS i R A R BUF

Guangdong Province Administration For Industry &
Commerce

EREIBTHREER

Guangdong Province Environmental Protection
Education Center

ERERERZSEHEP L

International Organization for Standardization (I1SO)

Bl % 42 2 48 43 (1S0)

International Organization for Standardization (I1SO)

5] PR A2 2 4B 48 (1SO)

Laboratory Accreditation Certificate
EREIAZFE

A=

Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) (certified for fabrics
and yarns)

IR L B MR LE(GOTS) (R RH

I'-I/Lr\DAL)

Organic Content Standard (OCS) (certified for fabrics and
yarns)

SEBEOC) (THRDIRRE)

Dongguan Cleaner Production Enterprise
EMBEREELR

Year 2013 Machong Advanced Energy-saving Unit
—E-CHFERREERELESN
Guangdong Province Enterprise of Observing Contract and

Valuing Credit (14 consecutive years)

ERETERECALE(EETTSF)

Ecological Civilisation Propaganda Compassion Award

LTRXAEEF LR

1SO14001 certificate (certified for Environmental
Management System applied to the production of knitted
dyed fabric and yarn and related management activities)
ISO14001EFECEAREEHBR T RO URBEEEEE
HoREEEERAE)

1SO9001-2008 certificate (certified for in house laboratory
testing services for textile yarns and fabrics)
1SO9001-2008F & (A A R H R NARIBERZE
)

R & AR 75 52
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SECTION 2: AWARDS AND CORPORATE MEMBERSHIPS H$_fi . RERGTEXEEEK @)

(continued)

Organisation

s

Mill Qualification Programme

TRREE &

Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China
REARLAE I EMNE B I

Natific AG

Testex AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute

B = 45 48 fr B S 4B Testex AG

Testex AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute

B & 45 48 B S M 48 Testex AG

The Economic & Information Commission of
Guangdong Province

EREKENERLEES

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BREEREHE

Zhejiang Semir Garment Co. Ltd
WIS R & AR 0 B BR 2 &

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Achievement Award
BB 5

Textile Dyeing and Printing Enterprises

ENRAT A AR

Compliance to the requirements of the Colour Accreditation
Program

BEACRBEFNRE

Oeko Tex Standard 100 Class 1 (certified for yarns made of
100% cotton, cotton/polyester, 100% linen, linen/cotton and
cotton/acrylic white or dyed (reactive, disperse, basic) and
with or without oil repellent finished)
Oeko-Tex Z % 10058 — £ (E 4648 ~ 48 W im ~ AR ~ ff 4%
Rt/ BEHecEABFCEE 2 HE)RE FEMHHEM
THH N RE)

Oeko Tex Standard 100 Class 1 (certified for knitted fabrics
made of 100% cotton, cotton/polyester, cotton/acrylic,
cotton/elastane, cotton/modal, cotton/modal/elastane,
white, yarn- or piece dyed (reactive, disperse, basic dyestuffs)
and with or without oil repellent finished) (based on
material partly pre-certified according to Oeko-Tex Standard
100)

Oeko-Tex 2% 10058 — 4 (B 448 ~ 8 Wim 18 B4 - 18
JSEm-RB/ERE R/ ERAE SR EERECCE
M SHCBEERR)RE R E RIS &R HRE)
(1R 45 Oeko-TexZZE100 W MBI B o FEFA SR B E %)

Guangdong Province Cleaner Production Enterprise

EREBREERSE

Caring Company Award
BRREARR

Merit of Quality
mEEER
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SECTION 2: AWARDS AND CORPORATE MEMBERSHIPS

(continued)

Organisation

A

China Dyeing and Printing Association
REENRTEBS

China Knitting Industrial Association
FES B TIERS

Guangdong Provincial Cleaner Production Association
BEREBREEHSE

Guangdong Textile Association

EREHEHE

World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong
HERAEA(EBRESE

RE 2 RERRE
E-H - BERLESEER®E)

Membership
2%

Member
g8

Fifth Board of Director
FHEHEES

Member

g8

Executive Director

EREE

Silver Member

MREE

SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY

Working Conditions and Labour Standards

Our people lie at the core of our business operations and form the
very foundation of our success and development. As an organisation
we aim to prioritise the well-being of all of our employees and strive
to move ever forward, progressing and developing together.

Essential to this is the creation of an optimal workspace environment
where our employees are able to work together harmoniously, free
from any form of discrimination or harassment. Our commitments to
upholding these principles are reiterated within our management
measures, and recruitment and promotion practices throughout all
our operations. We endeavour to safeguard diversity and uphold
principles of fairness while preserving the rights of our employees,
regardless of race, social class, age, nationality, religion, disability,

gender or sexual orientation.

As a Group we strive to create a positive work-life balance that
provides reasonable working hours and rest periods applicable to all
our employees. Specific to our textile operations, employees are
offered a range of allowances and bonuses such as compensation for
working in high temperature environments, night shift allowance as

well as performance and end of year bonuses.

All our Human Resources policies are structured to adhere to
legislation within the employment ordinance in Hong Kong and
respective labour laws in the People’s Republic of China.
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued) E=H

Working Conditions and Labour Standards (continued) IHRBERS ITEL (F)

T EMNEIREZE#H)

Fostering a Positive Work-Life Balance

SRMEITHEEEETE

Our employees frequently come together to enjoy a number of cultural and sporting activities, promoting a sense of
team and collaborative spirit at our corporation. Both labour unions and the corporate cultural affairs committee of
our textile manufacturing sector lead and deliver various cultural activities across company levels.
BMNEETKER HESBXCNESETY REXEFHEEEARNSERG KRMASBRHEI TN IERAA
TEXCZEEHNHAAFTEERNEESH S EILED -

Every month the company organises a party for all the employees celebrating their birthday that month. Employees
celebrating their birthday are encouraged to bring up to two family members to join the party. On average, 650
employees and their family members join the party each month.
ARBERAMEEREANEEARS A BEENER IHBEREANEERTREIMUREXNESHE
B FHME BABOEEERERERESHES -

There are variety shows, sessions where department heads, colleagues, relatives, friends and family convey birthday
wishes, lucky draws, interactive games and also sharing of the birthday cake. Birthday celebrants receive celebratory
drinks and presents as well as a birthday card from their department head.

LHBREEESNEHERE APHHEE - H%&%ﬂﬁ%%i BHE FEHR EFERNSZLEBERSRE -
THEESKRIENAM EERYUARBPIEEHENEHF -

A cultural affairs fund was also established, with plans to roll out about 15 sporting activities such as basketball and
table tennis matches and snooker for the enjoyment of all staff.

BEMTPRIEFHES AR RNISEREETY PINERREERBESURIR  UHFEET =4
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued)

Working Conditions and Labour Standards (continued)

Please find below a detailed breakdown of our employee by age
group, region and employee type:

Total Number of Employees

BERH

2015
—E-—1E

165

B Texwinca in Hong Kong
(I EL

B Texwinca in Dongguan
FEXRERS

M Baleno in Hong Kong

YeRRE B

Baleno in Guangzhou

MEreRR M

mm 4=z N

RE 2 RERRE
F=  BANEIRZE @)
THBERSTEL (4H)
S2MTHRRAMEINERAR HERES
BEOSMESE:

2014
—z-mE

175

Texwinca in Hong Kong

BKERE

Texwinca in Dongguan
BKERS

Baleno in Hong Kong

ek &8

Baleno in Guangzhou

YEre Rk M

2015 2014
—B-HF —E-mE
Employee Type Age Group Age Group
EEER FH AR FiAR
Below 30 Over 30 Below 30 Over 30
308 AT~ 30m A £ 30 A~ 305 A £

Texwinca in Hong Kong Full-time 15 148 17 156
EKEERB R

Part-time 0 2 0 2

R
Texwinca in Dongguan Full-time 2,752 4,693 2,880 4,512
BAKERST 2

Part-time 0 0 0 0

R
Baleno in Hong Kong Full-time 203 138 234 149
MEREE X

Part-time 137 10 123 12

FR
Baleno in Guangzhou Full-time 2,424 789 3,039 781
TEfE B8 M 2B

Part-time 520 8 436 8

£

EXEREERAT —B—HEH @
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued)

Working Conditions and Labour Standards (continued)

F=H BEMNEIREZE#@
THBERLTEL ()

Safeguarding Freedom in our Textile Operations

HREERERH

Asserting our commitments to fairness, the utilisation of any form of forced labour is of utmost concern and priority to

our textile business. Strict internal policies reflecting compliance with both local and national regulation prevent any

forms of indentured labour. This is stringently enforced within our recruitment policies which are frequently updated

to reflect any amendments or updates to relevant national or local legislation.

REBRMHY LA TFHENAR BRASERIUNEAFRAEANBHE T I ARMHMARBELCEEEIE - BRIEHN
ABBEERREMEFTEMRETER  UBLEARANRZOET - EHMWBEBRET  BMBRF AT LLE

Ie - 58 5 BT - LAY) &R A BB SR Sk E b 0 {5 49 45 5T = BB T o

The Group is also dedicated to ensuring that operations remain free from child labour, and is developing systems and
procedures to handle the management of such incidents. Should a child be discovered working on our premises, he or
she will immediately be transported back to their hometown or place of origin. We will then file necessary
documentation with the local authorities while consulting with the child’s guardians on avenues for his or her return
to school.

FEBTHIRREETRBEET VYRREEREFHSHANEERAREF HEREEAREREMOYEAT

B WMELAEFBEARBRRE L RMALKOEHRARIMENIN ARORZENEEABRAES -

Development and Training
Cultivating skilled employees who are capable of rising to meet the
demands of a dynamic industry is pivotal to the success of both our

textile and retail businesses.

Specific to the needs and requirements of the retail sector, Baleno
offers a series of internal and external programmes to promote the
advancement of job related skills. Examples of some our programmes
initiatives involve our management trainee programme, frontline staff
induction, and training plans for all levels of frontline staff.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

RE  HEREREKRE

F=F - RMANEBIRRZ @
B R R ()

The Baleno Training Academy

E fe 5% 55 FI 28 B

Established in 2006, The Baleno Training Academy continues to provide continuous education to our employees

offering a diverse set of courses on subjects ranging from business management to psychology. It also serves as a

platform for exchange and sharing of best practices, catering to and driving the company’s continuous development.
HRBEIERNR-ZZAERL — ERARMNEERHSELEERE REBZES Lt HFEEEILEER
Z-HPAXBRRIEREFERENTA  UELHEFHAARNSERER -

With the end goal of furthering the advancement of skills specific to
our textile business, we conduct a number of internal courses
(supplemented by external courses if necessary) covering strategic
planning, team management, sales and language skills. The Group
also sponsors the cost of any workshops or seminars that employees
would like to attend in order to further their professional

development.

Partnering with the Dongguan Technical College, employees are
offered the opportunity of furthering their skills related to becoming
an electrician. These courses cultivate a pool of job specific talent,
raising our level of technical competence. As of the publication of this
report, there were a total of 169 employees being trained at the
college.

LE-—SRARMOSBEBNRMBELE
2 EMNERTRANARRE(WBEFTE @
MREHER)  EPRERKRL BBEEE
EREBXED -AEBTENERESMIFSL R
Mg UE-—TRRATERRE-

EMERZRMBREFE CREAREE—H
RARGCEIFHENREMN ZERBBFE—MHE
BHAT  RBABRFOREKRF -RARETI# 2
K HB1698EBEERERPEZE -
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

The following charts present a detailed breakdown of development of
employees’ talent and skills by employee category at Texwinca and

Baleno.

Percentage of Total Employ

ees Trained (Texwinca)

MEIMEE B D L (K E)

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

General Middle Senior
Managers  Managers
EEBET  PRKE SRR
Hong Kong
]
= 2015

General Middle Senior
Managers  Managers
ETRAET  hREE  SRKR
Dongguan
R
m 2014

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee (Texwinca)

P98 A {8 8 5T AR IR B (FEKAE)

General Middle Senior General Middle Senior
Managers  Managers Managers  Managers
LWBET PRAE SREE | TRET  PREE  BREE
Hong Kong Dongguan
(Hours) = RE=
CPE) m2015 m2014

Health and Safety

Safety is a core tenet of our operations and embedded into the very
fabric of the way in which we do business. The health and safety of

our employees as well all those within reach of our operations is of

utmost concern to us.

Within our textile operations, we ensure that all our production and
manufacturing sites are in full compliance with 1SO 14001
requirements for Environmental Management Systems. Our
commitments are also reflected in a number of other occupational
health and safety measures contained in the “Occupational Hazards
Prevention Guidance"”, that are tailor made to the requirements of

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

(Hours)
CNEF)

EF=H BANEIRZRZ#E)
BRRE (4#7)
TRETEXERMEHZESER ESF 4
REMBEROFMDE-

Percentage of Total Employees Trained (Baleno)
BEIEEFS L (HERK)

General Middle Senior General Middle Senior
Managers  Managers Managers  Managers
ETRET  hAEE SREE | TRET  hAERE  SRER
Hong Kong Guangzhou
] M
m 2015 m 2014

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee (Baleno)

FHF AR TR (PER)

General Middle Senior General Middle Senior
Managers  Managers Managers  Managers
TRET  PREE BRAE | TRET  PREE  SREE
Hong Kong Guangzhou
5] B
m 2015 m 2014
BEHEZZ2

ZERBEMEENRORE  AAHNEREMD
ERAXET - RMANEEURFBELEBRDN
RERZE2EEUREMEEINEE-

EHBEET HMBERAMELEERNELHE S
EEEISO 14001 MIRFERRBRARE - RIFIAIE
FA IR R BRAE [ BB € B5 08 T 1F 75 51 IR BT OB 26
RERZZHEE ZEZHERRREETNERE
EREREMEBSTH Z2HHMTFFTEEA
BE EEENRARTCAZLTE-

actual production conditions at our operations. The concept of safety

has also been brought to a person level, having a bearing on

managerial performance and bonuses.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 3: OUR PEOPLE AND SAFETY (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Inspections are frequently carried out, guided by a series of assessment
forms while production checks are organised at production/
manufacturing sites and at company level on a monthly and quarterly
basis respectively. Should, the need arise for medical care, we have
ensured all our employees are provided with both medical and
hospital insurance. We also partner with healthcare companies,
conducting health related seminars, and organising dental and health
checks, which we have extended to family members of staff at a
discounted rate. For all staff that are exposed to occupational hazards,
free annual occupational disease check-ups are provided. In 2014 more
than 300 people have already undertaken the checks.

Putting our ideals into practice within our retail sector we follow the
5S Retail Store Requirements: Structurise, Systematise, Sanitise,
Standardise and Self-discipline. This approach commits our
organisation to the highest ideals of efficiency and hygiene. Other
practices of concern at our retail stores involve the establishment of
forklift safety practices to ensure the safe operation of machines and
the security of staff.

RIE HERERRSE
EFE=ZH BANEIRRZRZ @)
RERZZE ()
BMEEETHRE BRI NTEREME
T 4ERBRAFREBEENEEREIRNESAR
BEET R - MEHREERBEE ZMARR
FEERMNEEEEERAERRR - HRMATER
BAGBEE ETHREEBENMIE  LE7T
FRREGBRE ZEBEERBTIREEZEEIR
BrAAZEEERl HREBIRERENAR
FEI #HMHEESKBNFERERRS - R
20145 > B R EHBIBI0AETIHE -

EMBESRAZSESINERS  BREERE
REE FHAE FEE EER FHERE
B - BEMNHOEBULT ZERRERFENR
SE HtZEEFEREETESIRIERERZS
RIERE UEAEBREZEREIZE -

A number of committees have been established to both oversee and develop health and safety related initiatives

specific to operations.

EMERLEEZES UEERBRHELEENRERZ2HBER -

The Occupational Health Monitoring and Management Committee have been tasked with the set-up of an
"Occupational Health Management Duties Guide”, overseeing the implementation of the contents of the guide
throughout manufacturing operations.

BERREEER S EHEHEREEETFHERES ] ERESINTRERARELEETNHTER

The Safety Production Management Committee at Texwinca was also able to set up the establishment of a safety
manufacturing production structure. This structure provided guidelines, a set of related goals, production requirements
and management methods to ensure safety throughout our operations.

BAENZ2EEEEZE SRRV R 2R ELERE ZEABRMBEREMEBEMALEER2MES - —RIIEEN
B LEREREEMIE -

There were no fatalities during the reporting period in any of our operations.
RI|EDD SESBHAFGRIN -

Reported lost days due to work related injuries amounted to a total of 36 days in Hong Kong and 102 days in
Dongguan.

BERARRECERNEIEMBANEATIEAZE DRI A36HK 102 °

BAEEEERLIA —ZE-AFH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

m oy {55 3
RIE -2 REBRRE
SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
Our textile and retail operations recognise the importance of greater
environmental stewardship in order to ensure the holistic and

harmonious development of our business alongside the environment

and communities in which we operate.

Fundamental to these efforts is the incorporation of technology,
provision of training and the utilization of systems that drive
awareness, efficiency and contribute to the mitigation of our overall
environmental footprint. Through our combined efforts we hope to
instigate a broader consideration and culture centered on aspects of
environmental performance relevant to each of our employees and

relative to all aspects of our business.

Texwinca’s Thermal Power Plant

Situated in Dongguan, a notable feature of our operations is our
thermal power plant. Through the combustion of coal, this plant
produces all the heat and electricity required to meet the needs of our
production processes and operational areas.

To minimise the overall environmental impact of the power plant and
increase resource efficiency, we pride ourselves on our use of

environmental and energy saving technology.

Flue gas emitted through the smoke stacks conforms to national and
local environmental regulations and has minimal impact on the
surrounding vicinity. We employ a range of green technologies and
procedures in the power plant such as “electrostatic precipitators”,
and "wet flue gas desulphurisation” (use of wet scrubbers), and
"selective non-catalytic reduction (SNCR)" to treat the emitted flue
gas and minimise pollution. Emissions are monitored online on a real-
time basis to ensure compliance with standards before being
discharged.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

ENE EEEMAHRENRE
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
(continued)

Texwinca’s Thermal Power Plant (continued)

Air pollutants such as SO, and NO, emissions are below 100mg/m?
while smoke and dust discharged are below 17mg/m3. The chart below
presents an aggregate total of these respective emissions for the
power plant over the course of the reporting years:

RE 2 RERRE
FOEH EERMERENEE @)

BAKERER (F)
ERERYM_ELRRAEECNNERELS
KOMI00ER  MEENFRAELFRIR
1TER - TREJNHRERRBEFEZSHRY
HMEEREE !

Annual Emissions (Texwinca in Dongguan)
BFHME (REREKE)
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Energy considerations in Textile Production

Innovation is central to our operations and encouraged at every stage
of production. We aim to embed a culture of awareness around the
need to save energy throughout our operations.

Continuing to utilize energy saving technology, we are gradually
replacing existing lighting at our offices and warehouses in Hong
Kong with light-emitting diodes (“LED"). At our textile manufacturing
office, the reduction in the number of lamps being used and the
installation of automatic controls have resulted in savings of over
18,000 kWh per annum.

Our manufacturing plants have developed similar initiatives centered
on the reduction of waste and the development of an energy saving
operational mode. Through the harnessing of thermal energy present
in wastewater, installation of advanced energy-saving facilities,
streamlining our mechanical and electrical systems, enhancing
operational efficiency and developing innovative energy-saving
production processes, we have achieved an overall saving of nearly
6,000 tonnes of coal equivalent based on our comparison in 2014.

Smoke and Dust
ped=d
m 2014

BEREENERTE

AFARMEENERY  BNTFIBRE—EE
ERRAN RMHWRERBY-—EREMEE
EEIMIFEHENSHL -

BB ENATERN BREeELSBEEBREN
RERERRPELRAX_BE(LEDD - H 8
RHEERAEERORABRBHERZEEEE
FIRS BETFEHEBIB18,000T KK -

EAMEERECER —EELUMNEE BER
OB REROENEEER - BBRIAREK
FIEBERI U - FIRC MR G ETSERER
HMEA RSRMEHONE FHRINGHEEE
IEL BER-_T-NFHEIEE RMEEED
A R 6,000 WA 1Z 2 44 o
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

(continued)

Energy considerations in Textile Production (continued)

The energy management system which we have in place seeks to

guide, instruct and reward the efficient and apt use of resources.

FOEH EERMERENEE @)

BEBREENRERZE ()
EMEBETHEREERAREERMERBEERL
REHES - EERER-

Energy Efficiency at Baleno

TE JE BR 1Y RE R R &

All Baleno retail stores in Hong Kong have recently joined the CLP GREEN™YS Energy Billboard, energy benchmarking
plan. The monitoring and analysis of Baleno’s energy consumption as part of this programme showcases resource

efficiency relative to its peers, providing the basis for the development of focused programmes aimed at saving energy.
ERMENNEREBEERISHAELFHVHEENREREETSE ZEBNEF -2 REER D NHER
WEEREA  LETHBREENERYE  RBRPENERSRREMER -

Given the primary nature of electricity production in Hong Kong being through the combustion of coal, mitigating

electricity use will have a strong effect in reducing Baleno’s overall greenhouse gas footprint.

HREBRENEIZUEAMBEERER WRLERAEISHBRLMERERRERBENTREATLE -

The direct energy consumption at Texwinca is as follows:

Total Coal Consumption (Texwinca in Dongguan)

B EFER (R=EXKE)
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Electricity Consumption (Texwinca in Hong Kong)

B2 (FBEKE)

240,000

140

230,000

120
100

80

220,000

210,000

60
40

20

200,000
(Tonnes of coal equivalent)
(MERRAELR) 2015

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

0

(1,000 kWh)
2014 (1,000 F R &)

2015 2014



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
(continued)

Energy considerations in Textile Production (continued)

Total Scope 1 greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions including thermal
power plant, motor vehicles and refrigerant from our Dongguan
operation is as follows:

RE 2 RERRE
FOEH EERMERENEE @)
BHRILEENRRER (B)

RREZEE RERB(RERBDHE &
FHE(BEAER - RERRLE)NT

Total Scope 1 GHG Emissions (Texwinca in Dongguan)

BERGE (HE—) AN E (RRKE)
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Texwinca’s operations from its office in Hong Kong produce 95 tonnes
of CO, equivalent as a result of its electricity consumption in 2015.

Our Commitments to Natural Resources Management

Throughout all our operations we emphasize the need to fully utilise
all available materials and resources, re-using, reducing and where
possible recycling at all operational levels and all stages of production.
We have also made broader shifts in the utilisation of technology to
increase resource efficiency.

2014

EXERBBRAENEE R-Z—HEFEHE
MEASBH _FtRhEE

o

BEMUBREREENERE
BEMRRBERELED FRELEEERLEE
BERTEEFNAMENHRER UBOEM -
HMAREATHERTERER - RMTRER
RiiEE EERSELSE ReERNE -

Since 2011, handheld devices have been appropriated at Baleno to create a paperless system for stock keeping. This has

resulted in a saving of more than 20,000 sheets of A4 paper each month.

B-Z——F8 JMERCEMRATFREE AFEEERYERRS - WBEES A EEB20,000RA4KE

Other recycling ventures at Baleno involve transporting used carton boxes back to the warehouse for re-use while

provision is also made for the recycling of old metal furniture and computers.

RN HEMBEREAEREESEEANSEENERRRBA AKTRREAESERERSMK-

BAEEBERAT —E-HFH
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
(continued)

Promoting Quality while Driving Resource Efficiency

At Texwinca we prioritise environmental integrity and are conscious of
the role that technology plays in driving efficiency and reducing
overall waste. At our textile operations we aim to reuse 2% of waste
yarn produced during manufacturing while continuing to demonstrate
and strive for improvements in the quality of our output.

Over the reporting period, our product success rate has risen by 5%,
this has had the corresponding impact of reducing the production of
substandard products thereby their contribution to overall waste.
Other examples of the effective use of technology include the use of
an automatic auxiliaries device at our dyeing factory. This device
measures and transfers auxiliaries automatically, which significantly
enhances the accuracy of the amount of auxiliaries used.

A competent production management system oversees the entire
textile manufacturing process; from the careful selection of raw
materials, production and recycling of waste at the final stages of
product development. With an aim to reduce waste, waste materials
at every stage of production can be sorted and reused.

FOEH EERMERENEE @)

RS mE R RS

BAEERENZEERREN  BEIRMR
EBRERBMIENVEEFEENAR - RS
BREBMS BMNEEREARLEEREL
2%MEY FREERRIIFEARERSE -

REEGRESHE RMANERRDRES%
HMBALEEREERMERBEYRENISE -
H A E AR B9 6] 7 B4 R SR A B ER
MEStERE WREBBAEMBEBE - X
RESHERAENERM -

ERNLEEEEAREERESAMAEBRE
HEREMH LEIERBREEEABROER
EREY - BRLEY SLEERBRNERTS
BREM-

Characteristic of all textile operations is a high volume of packaging, we recycle 9.8 million units of bobbin and 480,000

carton packaging boxes per annum.

FBHBREBNBRARENER -HMESFREREM.SH SEAY & LK 480,00018 54 -

When distributing mooncakes or similar festive treats to our textile manufacturing employees, recyclable bags are used

saving over 14,000 paper bags each year.

ERHEMsARRENEERRXASRAARRE - RMNEATER

Technology as a Tool in Waste Reduction

The use of an airflow dyeing machine at our operations has
substantially improved the first time success rate to 90% of our dyeing
processes while reducing the production of any substandard
merchandise and need for product repair. Annually this technology
saves over 50% of water, 30% of auxiliaries, 10% of dyes each year.

In managing the treatment of sewage at our factories, online
detection devices has been installed to facilitate real time monitoring
of the treatment process.

Wastewater treated and discharged at our sewage treatment centre
has Chemical Oxygen Demand less than 60mg/L and Ammoniacal

Nitrogen less than 5mg/L.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
(continued)

Technology as a Tool in Waste Reduction (continued)

Illustrated below is the total production of waste and water discharge

at our Dongguan

operations.

Total Hazardous Waste
(Texwinca in Dongguan)

BEFEYEE (BXERS)

RE 2 RERRE
FNUEH  EERMYERENTE @

BRERRETIAR(E)
TREINKRMRRZEEELENBEYRERFER
KE o

Total Non-Hazardous Waste

(Texwina in Dongguan)
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Mitigating our water footprint

Given the nature of textile operations, water is a paramount resource
in the running of our operations and production of our textiles.
Obtained from the Dongjiang River, we at Texwinca prioritise the
effective management of this resource, taking every precaution to
ensure that water is both utilised and re-used efficiently. We currently
reuse 58% of water.

Through the effective utilisation of energy and water saving
techniques such as improved dyeing processes, collection and recycling
technologies, we aim to maximise our water utilisation efficiency and

reduce wastage.

BWAOBRMAKZEED

ERGHEBNME  KARMEERFEARE
ENEZER - BREBRIEK  BHERHK
EREEMA TN BRELFTA FE A 18 i AR K
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
(continued)

Mitigating our water footprint (continued)

At our textile manufacturing offices, all water from wash basins used
for the washing of hands is reused in the flushing of toilets resulting
in a saving of over 3,000 cubic metres of water each year. Water
saving technology in the dyeing process is utilised to reuse light-
coloured water and recycle cooling and condensing hot water from
the dyeing container in the factory. This results in an annual saving of
over 3,370,000 cubic metres of water.

FOEH EERMERENEE @)

WA R Mk R (F)
EEMNGBREERAE TEXREBLAFER
REFHKBEERETRK EEFHEEB
3,0003Z F5 3K MYk o F2 45 72 7 P /Y B K 3 ol A R
BERAREENK UEREAREBRERIN
PR AN R B EOK - B F B E Hi8 3,370,000 753K
Ko

Water Consumption and Water Reuse (Texwinca in Dongguan)
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Our Efforts at Environmental Stewardship

Both our textile and retail operations seek to align and work toward
environmental best practice. This involves giving careful consideration
to various operational aspects and activities within our value chain to
minimize any environmental impact.

According to our “Occupational Health Prevention and Control
Guide”, all
environmental impacts listed within national legislation are forbidden

prohibited substances with possible negative

within our manufacturing operations. Our internal guides also specify
requirements for the proper procurement, storage and handling of
substances, chemicals, merchandise as well as any other materials used
in our textile operations. This is with the end goal of reducing the
overall environmental impact. Particular attention is paid to the use of
organic cotton yarn in both workshop areas and within manufacturing
processes.

All our suppliers are explicitly prohibited from using materials
containing toxic substances and suppliers are required to sign our
"Restricted Substances List Compliance Declaration”. Spot checks are
frequently carried out at regular intervals to ensure compliance with
the Group's code.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

(continued)

Environmental Considerations at Various Operational Stages

Within both our textile and retail operations, we seek to foster a
culture of environmental consideration at each stage of our
operations. This involves a greater examination of the environmental
impacts relative to each operational task and responses or solutions to
mitigate each effect.

The following table provides a more detailed analysis of various
environmental impacts at operational stages and actions taken to
reduce such effects.

Product Design

s
=
et
EI;I_*

Procurement

REE

Cotton Spinning/
Fabric Knitting

LR g Xl

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE
FENEEERMERBENEE @D

Significant Environmental Impact/Issues

BEABEEE BH

Raw materials of synthetic polymer fibers
are derived from petroleum by-products.
The production process will consume
natural resources and emit GHG.

AEBESMAENFEEREAMEIER -
SEBRBHERRRER LHBRER
%_%_o

Coal which is high in sulphur content will
produce a higher amount of sulphur
dioxide when combusted.

EMESHERENRERELERZHN =
=R {7

Cotton dust is a common by-product from
this process.

REALBENEREER -

TREERRTHNREZE
HERRETEXBD EMNAHEESELERR
EERBRZENN -UFREEETFRAK

BERFENHRABRIREREYEEARE
HiRE -

THREHBEERRTRERRZERRIUR
SERFENTHNEFADN -

Actions taken

Fir ERER AT B

Baleno has actively introduced an
advanced eco-cotton as a filler for its
quilted jacket. Eco-cotton is a renewable
raw material, which when compared to
synthetic polymer fibers reduces required
energy consumption and GHG emissions
during the production process.

B EBBEI A LENRRBIERER
BHNEZY BRRBATELERR  BA
EREVMHEERIREEBREMERRE
ERBEREHEME -

Specified contractually, we will not accept
coal with a sulphur content higher than
0.6% weight.

Automated monitoring systems have been
installed in the thermal power plant to
ensure that the flue gas emitted meets
emission standards.

HMRENPRTH IS EnmES
R0.6%EBEEHE X °
REBCZEADEZERLS  UERESR
FREFEHREE-

art

Filters are in place to trap and collect
unwanted cotton dust.

Both the temperature and humidity are
also controlled at the factory and this aids
dust suppression.
EEEBREFUERRBESHRNIBE -
EHRE AR ERRE - BB SR
EE o

BAEEBERAT —E-HFH
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SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

(continued)

Environmental Considerations at Various Operational Stages

(continued)

|E

Significant Environmental Impact/Issues

EXABRREE B4

ENE EERMAURENZE @
TREERRTHRASE (&)

Actions taken

Fi BRERAT B

Yarn/Fabric Dyeing

RE M

Fabric Finishing

mRMmT

Water Discharge

KB

Product Transportation

Product Sales

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Use of chemicals.

BREEA -

Smoke is often produced from the stenter
required in this operation.

EEMENERERTIREERE -

Wastewater arising from manufacturing
and daily use.

SERBEETEEMNEEK-

Products are transported from suppliers
overland by truck to warehouses in Hong
Kong contributing to Baleno’s GHG
footprint in the process.

EmEERLAEERHEREXERE
WER LWBEREMERBERNAERER
Ef e

Retail stores are typically characteristic of
a higher electricity consumption figure.

Plastics bags and packaging involved in
the sales of items also contribute toward
environmental impact.

ZEERAHESHREBNRE -

HEERFANBSRAETHBREER

The 1SO14001 Environmental Management
System is also strictly followed as regards
to the management of chemicals in the
workshop area.

AT EAK B HEISO14001 R 15
BB TSN ERTE -

EEAGH

Air-purifying equipment has been
installed to ensure sound air quality.
ERRERFLRE UBERRFNER
A

Wastewater is collected and channeled to
treatment tanks where a series of
biological contact oxidation processes take
place. Testing and monitoring are
conducted at regular intervals daily to
ensure the wastewater discharged
complies with national and regional
standards.
BEKBEBEZRENETELRERE B
REBKEREERMHEE SXE
TR AR B2 o

Through a more streamlined product
replenishment mechanism, the logistics
and sales department strive to reduce the
transportation distance, optimize the
number of products delivered and trucks
required.

ERERENFEERT - YR K HEE P
BORLERER BLEXERRAE
EBENHE -

Newly opened Hong Kong Baleno stores
now utilize high efficiency LED lights to
reduce overall energy consumption.

Baleno actively utilizes bio-degradable
materials in plastic bags and wrapping to
reduce environmental impact.
FHRNEBNERZSEEREEASN
BEMILEDJE » LUR D RERIEFERE o

T Je B TR A LA AT AR W RR AR Y ) B R AE
WBRREESR UBRIHRENIE -



SECTION 4: MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

(continued)

Environmental Considerations at Various Operational Stages

(continued)

Waste/Machine/Equipment
Disposal

REREY MERE

Significant Environmental Impact/Issues

EXARRRE B4

The leakage of waste oil from machinery
and chemical waste from containers and
light tubes may negatively affect the
quality of the surrounding environment.

HERR 2 IR Y BE O BA K B 28 AR B R H B 1k
EEHTRYARREENERENEEY

ENE EERMBERR
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RE  HEREREKRE

./ e
VB ()

TREERRTHRREZE ()

Actions taken
P BRER 1T B

We strictly follow 1ISO14001 Environmental
Management System guidelines for the
proper management, collection and
disposal of waste oil and waste.

Used chemical containers will be treated
by designated parties.

KRR BEISO14001 RIEE B A & 155
PHEREEERE WERESERANE

go

SECTION 5: OUR CUSTOMER AND VALUE CHAIN

Supply Chain Management

Effective supply chain management can have implications on cost,
quality and serve to mitigate social or environmental risks that an
organization may face. Given the diverse nature of suppliers present
within our textile sector, this is of particular relevance to our
operations. We therefore endeavour to pay due consideration to our
supply chain, seeking to form a deeper connection with all those with
whom we work. Our suppliers are expected to adhere to our high
standards, demonstrating continuous development in a variety of
operational, economic, social and environmental areas.

In order to be considered as a supplier, organizations are required to
pass an assessment questionnaire from which they will be evaluated
on production management flow. Existing suppliers are then engaged
on a bi-annual basis where they are required to conform with our
Code of Conduct regarding anti-corruption and bribery while also
declaring any conflicts of interest.

=
EEANCERBTRHEENRE -

FHE FEFREER

HEgEEE
BHENHEREETZERARRE  XWHE
HEFMEENEERRERAR ARG R
WEEETERZ AHEERMHNEEERR
HE- B BMSETERERE  SRERM
BENBHEVERENEE HEBLEER
EMBEBRNEE RTEEE KB HERE
BRESTETEHEBR

MERBHEER KB EBBEETR  EPFHT
HEEEEERE RAEHERET -—FWMAN
EZ HEBAERESREBNEE LR T
BFHHAR  YRREFTRHEEE -
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SECTION 5: OUR CUSTOMER AND VALUE CHAIN (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)
Necessary due diligence is also performed where required, with site

visits and verification of products or services arranged to ensure that

suppliers conform to the Group’s high standards.

FLH . EFREEH#H @
HESEE (4)

ERAE IR AEERUERRERBRAESR
RBHRET URRHESEAEENBREE

g o

Social and Environmental Considerations in the Textile Sector

HEIBHHEERREEER

To mitigate environmental and social risk within our supply chain and encourage greater consideration of these
aspects, we have agreements with our suppliers on environmental and social affairs associated with the manufacturing
of products. According to our “Stakeholder Management Procedure”, key suppliers are required to fill in a
"Stakeholder Environmental Questionnaire”. An on-site inspection on environmental and social behavior will also be
conducted if necessary.

RAEEHEENRERESREABURSEMRELTHENEE RMcERENREREERABENREREES
HA Y& REBERMN o EEEEF] T EHERTEE NI FS9EREAEX - EFFER  RMEHR
BRUESRBAETEMBIRE -

The Group requires suppliers to sign its “Commitment of Prohibition of Substances” and will give preferential
consideration to an organisation that is in possession of an ISO 14001 certified Environmental Management System.
Our audit departments also closely monitor suppliers at regular intervals to ensure compliance with social and
environmental standards.

AEBEREEEEEAZAYEAFE ] LELEZEEFISO 14001 R EERRBATETNHE - RPNETBLE
PR EREED UBEREBTHERRERE

The Group prohibits any transaction undertaken with suppliers who use forbidden chemicals and bans the use of
Uzbekistani cotton due to concerns with the employment of child labour in the region.

AEE2EZLIEFAEAZACERNEERRS YBRECARLIIRTHENRE UIHRZEGEAEIN

% -

Product Responsibility

We aim to achieve the highest possible standard with all the products
and services offered throughout our operations. Achieving these
standards involves the application of dedicated systems and
procedures to ensure compliance with both local and international
specifications.

Data Privacy is one such arena in which we comply with all relevant
legislation governing both our textile and retail operations. Similar
consideration is paid with the advertising of products where our entire
retail advertising and promotion efforts are cross checked to ensure
that they accurately portray product descriptions. We work to ensure
that our customers are able to make the most informed decisions on

their purchases.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 5: OUR CUSTOMER AND VALUE CHAIN (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

Protecting intellectual property rights is a priority to our organisation
which has in place dedicated management systems related to the
handling of patents and intellectual property. Systems are in place to
specify requirements on submission, application, indexing and
rewarding of patents. Strict confidentiality agreements are also signed
with technical specialists.

RE  #HERERRE
FEH . EFREEH#H @
EREEM
RENSERARANEECHE RMABEIE
BEAMRARERNEBEERAK - AATERE
HWHEFER BE ZSRBEFHUBEETER R
MR EA ST BRENRENE -

Ensure the Highest Quality with our Textiles
BREMNSBREE X

To ensure that quality is a major factor at each stage of our operations, each department is tasked with achieving their
own quality based targets devised in consideration of both the industry and market standards. Records are kept at
every stage to ensure both the efficiency and maintenance of product criterion.

REREEREARBURERE  SBMFEEINHASHRERS ZZERENSETERDTSEEMHE - S8
ERORFLHE UERERBEESUARER -

Before our products are dispatched, they are subject to our internal quality control standards. We also take the added
initiative on following up on every purchase with our clients to ensure that products were inspected before delivery.
Should there be any issue with our merchandise, products will be subject to review and procedures initiated on both

due compensation and recall.

RENA BANEREZS AR EEERENFA - RATFRRNBENERBRETFNE —HRE UBREGRR
]

NARZERE - HERMNWERBEMMAE

The Mill Qualification Programme is an internationally standardised
assessment approach on the performance of textile mills in areas such
as quality assurance, lab certification and environmental sustainability.
The organisation provided us with a score of 92 out of 100, above the
industry norm for the textile sector.

We are proud to note that we have had zero complaints over the
previous reporting year in regard to the quality of our products. If
however a complaint should arise, the company will immediately
assess the complaint and conduct an internal investigation into the
matter. Notaries will be involved to investigate the reasons for the
complaint and identify the source of the issue.

In Baleno, complaints are generally categorised into the types of
accidents, product quality, purchase processes, and services. A sound
complaint handling system is in place with training provided to
employees in order to ensure effective and speedy complaint
resolution.

CERPESRERARBERKRERERF -

ITHRERFTERHHEH AR THRRMATAEE
SEFELE RERERE BEREIABRE
BAFEM ZEBHRMOTD H925 (51100
DRMD) BEAMERNTEREE

FRMEIUBENR RBEARSFE  BRMAR
ABEERERRENRF - AWM HEEER
AR BE LR R BHETRE
AE - AEBAKSEBERFRERRE  LEESH
HH e

EHRH  RFE-—REMBERRIBHEN
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SECTION 5: OUR CUSTOMER AND VALUE CHAIN (continued)
Standards of Conduct

All of our operations comply with local and national legislation on
standards of conduct, such as with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
in Hong Kong and relevant legislation on anti-corruption and bribery

in mainland China.

Employees who engage in business operations and represent the
Company’s professional image, are strictly prohibited to use business
opportunities for personal interest or benefit. Employees are reminded
that receiving gifts of any form from suppliers is prohibited.

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy to provide a channel
for employees and other stakeholders to report on any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the Group in confidence and
without fear of reprisal or victimisation. The policy is available on the
website of the Company.

SECTION 6: OUR COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group seeks to be a positive
force in the communities in which it operates. For businesses to do
well, communities must thrive. We believe that the development of a
better future for our community relies on the participation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together with a
number of community partners, we can have a tremendous impact on
the sustainable development and vitality of the communities in which
we operate.

Corporate Social Responsibility via staff volunteerism, philanthropy
and community service is central to our core values and is ingrained in
the DNA of how we operate as a company. We have been active in
charitable donations, caring for people in need, as well as supporting
and sponsoring educational and environmental protection activities.
In addition, the Group also encourages its employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

Our Focus — the Group's philanthropy is focused on five core areas:

o Environmental Protection
° Poverty Alleviation

. Caring of Elderly

o Community Development
° Education

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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SECTION 6: OUR COMMUNITY (continued) EAREHEMANEE @
During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group RER FHAEEFZL 28 BEHHEBNE
participated in/donated or sponsored to were: B BRI
(1) World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong; (1) tHRER(BBIES,
(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest (2) &BEAZS[AZEHEAL;
Green Day”;
(3) Agency for Volunteer Service “HSBC Share-to-Care Volunteer (3) ZEXR IERERBIELEBLEREI AT
Campaign”; Bl
(4)  HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2014; 4) ELBEEBEHET2014,;
(5)  Sowers Action; (G) HEBETH;
(6) Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong; and 6) EBEBBELABERBESES K
(7)  St.James Settlement. (7) EBEHREEHE-
The Group’s Community Involvement in 2014 and 2015 AEBNR-Z—NOR-Z-FAFENHESHAE
Focus Area Resources Contributed
BT & BREIR
2015 2014
=F-1% —E-mF
Hours Funding HK$ Hours Funding HK$
Mg EBEE£OGBR) N B2(BR)
Environmental Protection 106 191,469 133 T-shirts 1 35,000 200 T-shirts
RIGRE 1334 T- 20044 T- 1l
Poverty Alleviation — 250,000 — — 250,000 —
®E
Caring of Elderly — 181,362 — — 237,000 —
BERE
Community Development 12 156,985 100 T-shirts — 1,045,889 620 T-shirts
HEERE and 900 6201 T-M
discount
coupons
10044 T-1ifl &
900REESH
Education — 87,500 400 T-shirts — 87,500 1,070 T-shirts
HAE 40044 T-1l 1,070 44 T- il
Total: 118 867,316 633 T-shirts 1 1,655,389 1,890 T-shirts
wEt and 900 1,890 T-1il
discount
coupons
6334 T-1l &
900REEH

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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SECTION 6: OUR COMMUNITY (continued) BERH EMNLE@®E)

Case Study: Ocean Park Conservation Fund’s “Run for Survival”

BRHMR BFEPEARBESZ[EREREE]

March 8, 2015 — We supported Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (OPCFHK), a leading conservation
advocate in Hong Kong, in organising Hong Kong's first-ever “RUN FOR SURVIVAL" charity run at Cyberport. Support
was provided to OPCFHK through staff volunteerism, corporate funding and provision of apparel for the runners. The
aim of the event was to raise public awareness on marine and biodiversity conservation, with an emphasis on three
major issues including marine debris, overfishing and pollution. The funds raised in the race are to be used to support
OPCFHK’s Asian wildlife conservation efforts.

CE-AFZ AN EMXEEBEERENREEEEBBXAERBEES(EBBXAERBEEZ D) ARARE
BRBNBESEEREEIZZB RABBEIZTIRY  CERHESRHEREIREBEEIABREE
T EHEANARSAZHEIREYERLCNNREZTE  BRERETFTIR BEHARSR=ZAIEZE -2EE
WAEBSREKAEXEEESF A ERFEESHNDNERNBEERRE (-

In this unconventional fun run, participants assumed the role of either a marine animal struggling for survival, or a
conservationist taking the responsibility for protecting marine animals. They had to overcome various dangers and
obstacles, such as the marine debris, fishing nets and the ocean killers, in order to reach the marine reserve 6.6 km
away.

EERAFHZERD SMEAHREFHIRFNEFENIERERESFEYNREE - B MEAR R TR ERE
RER > GlagFE - ARKEFHEE  ZECARINEFREE-

Case Study: Little Whale Volunteer Team
BRMR  NMERAE I

The Little Whale Volunteer Team was initiated in 2010 by staff of Baleno Guangzhou. Through a number of initiatives
including the provision of teaching supplies for local schools, financial subsidies for students in need, home visits and
short term voluntary teaching assignments, the programme aims to sponsor students living in poverty and to increase
access to education in rural areas of mainland China.

PRAETHR2010FHEEMNEERNESERRL - BB —RIER EEAELNERRMUAZAR  AEFE
WELARHPBHEE STNERNEERB T LA EEEDETELE IRSHEANBLENNEHEKFE -

The volunteering footprint of the programme spans across the different regions of China. Between 2010 and 2014, a
total of 39 schools and 3,546 children from Gansu, Sichuan, Lianzhou, Heyuan have benefited from the programme.
ZAtENEBEIENETEERENTERE - R2010F Z2014F & REHE - Tl - EMNRDRLEBIMER R
3,546 R EX BN AT & o
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SECTION 6: OUR COMMUNITY (continued)

The Group has once again been named as a Caring Company by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its contributions
to building a cohesive society, and inspiring Corporate Social
Responsibility by caring for the community, our employees and the

environment.

Ultimately our community programmes support our efforts in creating
a sustainable and cohesive society in areas that make best use of our
skills, expertise and influence, whilst at the same time addressing the

most pressing issues facing our local communities.

Therefore, the Group will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

RE  HEREREKRE

FRE B E @
AEEEREIAEELERBHEENT AR
BEHE RERMABARTERBBESET
B BEEREBEETOEMESE T

EMNHEINEKREERSAEMNNKRE &
REREED XBRMAE-EATHEZRRE
ERHE YEBEHABHERETNNERE-

At AEBEEESERRRRAEETEH
E HERBRED IRAUEFWMEHA

=2
=°

BAEEEERLIA —ZE-AFH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERRE

HKEx ESG CONTENT INDEX BREBE HEREARRRED

KPI Description Texwinca Baleno

ERE

MR ExE I fE B%
Page number E 5

A.  Workplace Quality TFREE %

Al Al General Disclosure —f&#i & 43744 43
Working A1.1 Total workforce by employment type, age group and geographical region 45 45
Conditions REREE FRANRBEZ S WIEELH
THERE
A2 A2 General Disclosure 48 49
Health and — R E
Safety A2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 49 NM
REREZE EIFBEFREmMETHABREE

A2.2 Lost days due to work injury 49 NM

HAIBGERIEBRH
A2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 49 49

how they are implemented and monitored

BAFTRANBERERZ2HE  URABHTREESE

A3 A3 General Disclosure 47 46, 47
Development — R E
and Training A3.1 Percentage of employees trained by employee category 48 48
2R R RESENEAINZIEET DL
A3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by employee category 48 48
RESEMNE S BEREETRZINFHEE
A4 A4 General Disclosure 43 NM
Labour —RiR =
Standards A4 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced 46 NM
B IR labour
BABREANNEREUABERETRBFHET
A4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 46 NM
EHRERBRE  HRE BB AR SR
B. Environmental Protection B {R &
B1 B1 General Disclosure 53, 54, 56 52,53
Emissions — MR E
£z & B1.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data 51 NM
B EERAEBHEREE
B1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, intensity 53 NM
BERBAKHRER WER EE
B1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity 55 NM
FEEEEREYEER (MER)EE
B1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity 55 NM
FELEREEEYRASR (NER)EE
B1.5 Measure to mitigate emissions and results achieved 50, 51, 54 NM
AR BE B B HE e % PR 1S B R
B1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 54, 59 53

reduction initiatives and results achieved

HAREEEREERRNNS L HEELEENERRAETRR

B2 B2 General Disclosure 51, 52, 54 51,52
Use of —RIFE
Resources B2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity 52 NM
ERER REMNAINWEER DEEEREAEEREE
B2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 56 NM
BEKBRERE
B2.3 Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 51 NM
EREAN ST ERAERR
B2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, 55, 56 NM

water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
I REAOR LA EMEE AREAFAAUEFTERFERE
B2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products 54 NM
BRmTAEREM AR
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Aspect KPI Description Texwinca

BRE

=ge] MIgR fuk KE

RE  HEREREKRE

BRXBRE HEREARAANBIES @)

Baleno

IE Je B%

Page number E 15

B3 General Disclosure
The —RIEE

Environment  JEEW] Significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural 57, 58, 59
and Natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

Resources | EBEHHBRERRAERNEASERERDNEBRTRAZENTE

RIBRAAR

&R

C.  Operating Practices & E 18|

c1 c1 General Disclosure 59, 60
Supply Chain — R E
Mana\gg{nent 1.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, no. of suppliers 59, 60
HEEEE where and how the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored
WA EEEAHERNES nERTEREMNNHERHE - UREBR
BEAINIITRERS E

53, 56

2 2 General Disclosure 60, 61
Product — R =
RestgErmblllty 2.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and 61
EmELE how they are dealt with

EEERERRBRENRFEHE UREHF E

2.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures 61

HiEEREBEREREKRER
c3 c3 General Disclosure 62
Anti-corruption — MR E
RES c3.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices and No legal case

the outcomes of the cases
ERAENESHARMENBE RFTAER
c3.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 62
how they are implemented and monitored
iR R ERER  UREBRTRERES A
D. Community Involvement &£ E2

D1 General Disclosure 62
Community —RiE =
Investment . Focus areas of contribution 62
HERE EL e
Resources contributed to the focus area 63
EERHEMBAER
NM = Not material for the business nature *  NM=$ZEBEERFEAX

NM

59, 60

59, 60

60, 61

NM

NM

62

NM

NM

62

62

63
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Independent Auditors’ Report % 3 1% 2{ Rl ¥} &

EY zx

To the shareholders of Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 70 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 3 1% 2{ il ¥} &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

15 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ZImSiEHE &R

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 —E— A F=A=1+—HIFEZE

2015 2014
—EB-RE —Z=—OF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
REVENUE WA 5 9,322,316 9,859,613
Cost of sales SHE R AR (6,144,692) (6,578,395)
Gross profit ER 3,177,624 3,281,218
Other income and gains Hig A R W& 5 286,630 334,488
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (1,841,004) (2,082,315)
Administrative expenses THEHA (761,432) (855,296)
Other operating (expenses)/income, net H#th&E(BH) WA » F58 (13,500) 9
Finance costs k&R 8 (23,935) (33,016)
Share of profit of an associate, FE(EEEE D BRA
net of tax BB %R 33,865 61,919
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A0 % R 6 858,248 707,007
Income tax expense 18 9 (85,717) (117,555)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A 772,531 589,452
Attributable to: B8
Ordinary equity holders QR EBEER
of the Company iRcES 10 773,293 668,352
Non-controlling interests JEERER (762) (78,900)
772,531 589,452
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BEAQATEES
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FEEERER
THE COMPANY (HK cents) CB L) 12
Basic HIK 56.0 48.9
Diluted BE% 56.0 48.7

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the AFEREFBREBNRMBRRMF 1R -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #& ZHEW A &K

Year ended 31 March 2015 BiZ —E—AF=A=+—HIFEZE

2015 2014

—-nf —E-mE

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BEFT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 772,531 589,452

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Htt2EUHE A
Other comprehensive income to be RHZBETEHE
reclassified to profit or loss in ZEENEMB2EKA :

subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation REGIEEXBEEZ

of foreign operations fEHE% 1,818 2,488
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME rFEEXHRALE
FOR THE YEAR 774,349 591,940
Attributable to: BB
Ordinary equity holders RAAREBES
of the Company e & 10 775,649 669,388
Non-controlling interests FIERER (1,300) (77,448)
774,349 591,940

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH 0



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #& B AR R T

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AE —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -MERZE 13 1,607,700 1,782,302
Investment properties REYE 14 425,303 349,432
Prepaid land lease payments FENLHBER 15 21,308 21,984
Construction in progress TEIRE 16 34,159 39,784
Trademarks BHE 17 33,293 33,293
Investment in an associate REEQARZRE 18 96,182 78,937
Long term rental deposits EHfs%ks 91,183 84,933
Total non-current assets BERBEE 2,309,128 2,390,665
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 21 1,867,472 1,898,392
Trade receivables FE U BR 3R 22 697,574 622,558
Bills receivable R ERE 219,021 267,654
Prepayments, deposits and EAFRE -T2k
other receivables H th FE UK BR =X 22 517,507 424,035
Due from an associate FEW B & D A 19 — 22,966
Held-to-maturity investments SEDNHHRE 20 — 68,877
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE 23 16,407 7,754
Cash and bank balances ReERBTER 24 4,372,060 4,024,108
Total current assets BRBEE 7,690,041 7,336,344
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FETBRRX 25 995,646 892,173
Bills payable EAEE 61,186 72,105
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEARAKREFTEE 26 515,833 486,679
Due to an associate FEHEEE DT 19 3,060 —
Derivative financial liabilities TEemaes 23 11,104 5,655
Tax payable FEfSHiE 35,177 79,946
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITE R 27 1,748,298 1,502,453
Total current liabilities WHREERE 3,370,304 3,039,011
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHR 4,319,737 4,297,333
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BWEERABERE
LIABILITIES 6,628,865 6,687,998
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITE R 27 158,328 366,664
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE 28 150,705 134,190
Total non-current liabilities BERBEE 309,033 500,854
Net assets EEFH 6,319,832 6,187,144
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #H& AR R T

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

2015 2014
—E—-REF —E-—MEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BET T
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to ordinary PR EEREEE
equity holders of the Company Bl s
Issued capital 2ETRAKR 29 69,085 69,085
Reserves E1E 31(a) 5,602,622 5,541,962
Proposed final dividend BIRRERE 11 414,509 345,424
6,086,216 5,956,471
Non-controlling interests FERER 233,616 230,673
Total equity s 6,319,832 6,187,144
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung =1 -
Director Director EWE THE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #3537 %
—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 =%

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profit of an associate,
net of tax
Interest income
Net fair value gains on foreign
exchange derivative financial
instruments
Net fair value loss/(gain) on
investment properties
Depreciation
Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment
Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
(Write-back of provision)/provision
for slow-moving inventories
Write-back of impairment of
trade receivables

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
bills receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in due to an associate/
decrease in due from an associate

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
bills payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accrued liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Profits taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities
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HK$°000

BETT

2014
—E-mEF
HK$’000
BT T

858,248 707,007
23,935 33,016
(33,865) (61,919)
(185,543) (171,141)
(33,617) (47,216)

7,912 (23,274)
280,485 338,073
— 13,563
682 685
1,730 (17,384)
(19,753) 52,018
(23) (2,724)
900,191 820,704
50,673 111,010
(26,360) 921,881
(93,472) 158,148
26,026 22,767
92,554 (764,064)
29,154 (105,827)
978,766 1,164,619
(113,971) (199,342)
864,795 965,277




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR EREE

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 —E—HAF=A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —E—MmEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 A E 185,543 171,141
Proceeds from disposal of derivative ~ HE{TEEBM T EWA

financial instruments 30,413 68,177
Dividends received from an associate ©WH#HZ QATRKRE 20,000 70,000
Purchases of items of property, BEVE BER

plant and equipment EHEIER 13 (103,857) (125,982)
Additions to construction in progress RBEE ITE 16 (24,443) (38,060)
Purchases of held-to-maturity BERFZIHENRE

investments — (103,068)
Redemption of held-to-maturity EORBZIHNRE

investments 68,877 46,825
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE BERRKRE

property, plant and equipment H B WA 4,521 10,080
(Increase)/decrease in long term REHEe®RS

rental deposits () (6,250) 64,189
(Increase)/decrease in time and RETZB=@AULFHEH =

structured deposits with original EHREBEER

maturity over three months when (i), w A

acquired (161,589) 1,103,404
Net cash flows from investing RETHRESAAFHE

activities 13,215 1,266,706
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Issue of new shares BITHR 29 — 101,529
New interest-bearing bank borrowings #ikf ST &= 3,127,621 3,446,977
Repayment of interest-bearing bank  EEH BRTER

borrowings (3,090,112) (5,086,320)
Interest paid EAFE (23,935) (33,016)
Dividends paid ENRE (704,665) (683,889)
Net cash flows used in financing METHRESAEFER

activities (691,091) (2,254,719)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBREEBYZ

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B, ORd) F5E 186,919 (22,736)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzBE2RBRESEEY

beginning of year 1,289,490 1,313,341
Foreign exchange adjustments INEFE (556) (1,115)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEEREESZEEY

AT END OF YEAR 1,475,853 1,289,490

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH e



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR ERER

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 —E— A F=A=1+—HIFEZE

2014
—B-EF —E-—NEF

HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BETT

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRESEENEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances BEMEBITER 24 343,278 373,540
Non-pledged time and structured RITZB=ZEARESHZ

deposits with original maturity EEATHREBEER

within three months when acquired 24 1,132,575 915,950
Non-pledged time and structured RITLA=Z@AULREHZ

deposits with original maturity over  EEBEH R EBUEER

three months when acquired 24 2,896,207 2,734,618
Cash and bank balances as stated ReRBRITER OHR

in the consolidated statement FEMBRRE

of financial position 4,372,060 4,024,108

Less: Non-pledged time and structured & : RETZ A =M@ A U £
deposits with original maturity Bz EEAERK
over three months when acquired EBMEER (2,896,207) (2,734,618)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRBELEEY
in the consolidated statement MERGEEERER
of cash flows 1,475,853 1,289,490
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Company Statement of Financial Position 2 B B # AR 5«

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Dividends receivable

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Poon Bun Chak

Director Director

Ting Kit Chung

FRBEE
RBAR 2RE

RBEE
BENRERT
W R B
RERBITEX

BRBEE

RBEE
Hit BN R R ESRE

BRBEE
REBEEFHE
HEERRBAS

EEFH

E
2BRITRA
f#f
BORAR R 2

BrEm

EZ
B IR

32

22

24

26

29
31(b)
11

2015 2014

—E-HE —E-mE

HK$°000 HK$000

BT T EBEFT

4,928,165 832,836

201 201

— 400,000

402 196

603 400,397

450 696

450 696

153 399,701

4,928,318 1,232,537

4,928,318 1,232,537

69,085 69,085

4,444,724 818,028

414,509 345,424

4,928,318 1,232,537

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

3 Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

o Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory;
o Provision of franchise services;

° Provision of repair and maintenance services for motor

vehicles; and

o Properties investment.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which because the Company
has not early adopted the revised Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), are those
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain leasehold land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment, and derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BERRBEZEE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs AEBERAEFEZHERRERNRAT
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements. DT RIS E BB R EER o
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Amendments to HKFRS 10, EBMBREEDN BEMBHREEL
HKAS 27 (2011) HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) E1055 - & B E105% - BRI
Amendments — Investment Entities B 75 3R £5 % B HREZEAE 1255

FNREREB REBGTEL
BT ERIE 2758 $27%

(ZZ——%) (ZZF——%)
(& =T A<) —REER 2B
HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 B g EH BBETTEAEI2R
Financial Instruments: Presentation #3255 (BT &) THTAE: 25—
— Offsetting Financial Assets and HEETHEER
Financial Liabilities 2HEEZIB
HKAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 39 HHBEFEL BEBGFTERIZE395
Financial Instruments: Recognition 395K (IBFTA) SHETE: BEH
and Measurement — Novation of FTE—{TETAZ
Derivatives and Continuation of EERHMWETZ
Hedge Accounting FEE 2 AERT
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies 58 (BRI BHRE #F
REZET)
—REE22R
HKFRS 2 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 2 EBUVKBEERN TR HREER
included in Annual Share-based Payment — Definition 258 (IBRT ) - F2RERKE
Improvements of Vesting Condition’ BREE=ZF-FF WXV —HEKH
2010-2012 Cycle EE-_FHE WEZZBE
ZFEN#E
HKFRS 3 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 3 ERAUKBREEDN BEVHEREER
included in Annual Business Combinations — #35% (BRI &) » FIREKEOH —
Improvements Accounting for Contingent BREE-ZE—ZF £B5003%4
2010-2012 Cycle Consideration in a Business EFoE-—FFY REHNEEE
Combination' ZFENE ZABET
HKFRS 13 Amendment ~ Amendment to HKFRS 13 EBPKREELED FEUHREED
included in Annual Fair Value Measurement F13RUBEIAR) »  F13RARLETE
Improvements — Short-term Receivables BRE=ZZF-ZFF —HHEUWEFE
2010-2012 Cycle and Payables ZE-E-_FHE FEMRZMZBE
ZFEN#E
HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 ERATKBREER BB BHREER
included in Annual First-time Adoption of Hong Kong 13 (BETA) » R A=
Improvements Financial Reporting Standards BREZE——F BBHKHEEER
2011-2013 Cycle — Meaning of Effective HKFRSs EZE-ZFRHE —BXEEHH
ZFENE &2 Rl % 2%
Z185T
1 Effective from 1 July 2014 1 R-E—E+LH—HABEN
The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has had no Ran E sl RSB ET BB ISR S L)
significant financial effect on these financial statements. WL BRENBMEAGHZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS12
and HKAS 28 Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception?

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Amendments to HKAS 1
Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)
Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 23 A EAZHIRKBIT>2EBH

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
° Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and

therefore is not applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31
March 2016. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group expects
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
Further information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint
operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 April 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 2.3 AIRMZHIT R IBIT2E BB
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG BHREEARBEEBQAAKEHT 2
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED FWEER#®E)

(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to ERUBRELRBNFISRFATEHFASE
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, A, W BERARRBEEFEHNRE - RE
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the ERMBMEENE SR WaERze
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in EAhAENMEEERNOEFEZEE RAR
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The BmERENM2RE B EEREXEEL

principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2017 and is

currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements in five areas, including materiality, disaggregation
and subtotals, notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies
and presentation of items of other comprehensive income
arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments
further encourage entities to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose and how to structure
the disclosure in the financial statements. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 April 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂi%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁi

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation
of depreciation of its non-current assets.

The Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle issued in January
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except for
those described in note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group.
Details of the amendment most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must
disclose the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of
operating segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if
the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision

maker.
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31 March 2015 —E—H#F=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBENBE
Subsidiaries =G|
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly MEARAAATDEEREEEHNEE
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved (BEEBMEER EXEEYHSHERE

when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of an associate is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investment in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon
loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of an associate are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investment in an associate is
treated as a non-current asset and is stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill E¥BEHEEE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Fair value measurement NARETE

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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31 March 2015 =&

—A¥=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

0]

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited

the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.

Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred
directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the
corresponding asset is used by the Group. The amount realised
is the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
leasehold land and buildings revaluation reserve and remains
there until the subsequent disposal or retirement of the
property, when it is transferred from the revaluation surplus to
retained profits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machineries under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life of a
trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment

from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Operating leases ReEHE

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessories, cost
is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 —&—AF=A=+—H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESHBENBME @
(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHEMESREE (&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss UAARBEHEARZHFTABEZzNEHE
E
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include UAREFEBEEHEZFHTAEZNERE

financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets KRIBRASREE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

3 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
3 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through”
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group'’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities KIERASRERE

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Income tax (continued) T8 (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, which
are not restricted as to use.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing
operation which allows customers to accumulate award credits
when they purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products
sold and the award credits issued, with the consideration
allocated to the award credits being equal to their fair value.
Fair value is determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# R M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have

been provided;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,

over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R M s

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESHBENEE #)
(continued)
Employee benefits EEREA
Share-based payments ER IR SE AT

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that
had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after
1 April 2005.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

schemes.
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE€HBENEE @)
(continued)
Borrowing costs BEERAE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
determines whether trademarks are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are related.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite
useful lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of
trademarks at 31 March 2015 was HK$33,293,000 (2014:
HK$33,293,000).
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature, condition and location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iii) independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2015
was HK$425,303,000 (2014: HK$349,432,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Write-down/write-back of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of the inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 March 2015
was HK$1,867,472,000 (2014: HK$1,898,392,000).

Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables
Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on the assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment allowances
requires management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying values of the receivables and impairment or its reversal
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. The
carrying amount of trade and other receivables at 31 March
2015 was HK$930,489,000 (2014: HK$775,878,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn
segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory segment; and

() the "others” segment principally comprises the provision
of repair and maintenance services for motor vehicles, the
provision of franchise services and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that gain on disposal of properties, interest
income, finance costs and share of profit of an associate, net of

tax are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits and an investment in an
associate as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEIEER#@E
(@) The following tables present revenue, profit and certain @ TERAEAEEBHEZE-Z-HE=A
asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group =Et+—BRZ-ZE-—NE=ZA=+-—
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014: AEFEZERIERA - HEF R

NEE BERIHER:

Group £H

Production, dyeingand  Retailing and distribution
sale of knitted fabricand  of casual apparel and
yarn accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
SARRRY 2
E#RER ERRGNEERDH Hity HH B

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
-®-5f -$-MF -$-If -$-NF -¥-5F -$-NF -¥-5F -¥-NF -¥-5IF -F-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT EETT  EEFT  EETT  BEFT  EETT  BEFL  EETT  BEFL  EETR

Segment revenue: AEUA
Sales to external customers EFHPREFE 4,717,508 5,026,253 4,591,367 4,816,247 13,441 17,113 - — 9,322,316 9,859,613
Intersegment sales PEEZHE — — - — 10,522 9,188 (10,522) (9,188) - -
Other revenue ECT'ON 63,399 88,466 5,569 (1,411) 36,918 61,421 (4,799) (4,458) 101,087 144,018
Total &t 4,780,907 5114719 4,596,936 4,814,836 60,881 87,722 (15,321) (13,646) 9,423,403 10,003,631
Segment results PEEE 622,303 671,116 13,433 (244,842) 27,039 61,360 — — 662,775 487,634
Reconciliation il
Gain on disposal of properties  HE&EYE - 19,329
Interest income FEBA 185,543 171,141
Finance costs BBER (23,935) (33,016)
Share of profit of an associate, ~ FE{5 & 2 BER]
net of tax BB TE 33,865 61,919
Profit before tax BBt AR R 858,248 707,007
Income tax expense HE (85,717) (117,555)
Profit for the year AEERF 772,531 589,452
Assets and liabilities: BEREM:
Segment assets PEBEE 4,332,956 4,675,339 1,792,721 1,803,907 474,217 399,576 (725,689) (881,318) 5,874,205 5,997,504
Investment in an associate REENAZRE 96,182 78,937
Unallocated assets RAMER 4,028,782 3,650,568
Total assets HWEE 9,999,169 9,727,009
Segment liabilities PEEE 815,784 824414 1,139,799 1,155,616 89,613 90,578 (458,367) (613,996) 1,586,829 1,456,612
Unallocated liabilities APBERE 2,092,508 2,083,253
Total liabilities BweE 3,679,337 3,539,865

Other segment information: ~ H# A E&EH

Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 & [ #i 8§ 179,755 200,130 100,056 137,193 1,356 1,435 — — 281,167 338,758
Capital expenditure BRAMELH 55,768 120,626 72,532 43,400 — 16 - - 128,300 164,042
(Write-back of provision) REGE (EERE)

Iprovision for slow-moving £

inventories (1,333) 13,683 (17,390) 39,393 (1,030 (1,058) - - (19,753) 52,018
Write-back of impairment EREFAERD

of trade receivables — — (23) 2724 - - - - @3) @724)
Impairment of items of ¥ BERZE

property, plant BARAE

and equipment - — - 13,563 — — - — - 13,563
Net fair value loss/(gain) on RENEARE

investment properties B8/ (W) F8 - - — — 7,912 (23,274) — — 7,912 (23,274)
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

EEIEEN @

(b) HEHHE
TRAXAEBHEZ-_ZE-H&E=A
=t+t-HBRZ-ZZE-NE=A=+-—
AEFEzHFBRARFRBEE
¢

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,
(b) Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and

non-current assets information of the Group for the years

ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014:

Group &£5F

USA
X8
2015

Mainland China
HE KK

2015

=t it

HKS$'000

BEFR

Others

i
2015
—E-%E
HKS$'000
BEFR

Eliminations Consolidated
HE &

2015 2014 2015

—Z-%f “E-MF —B-E1F

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

EMFr E¥Tn EETR

Japan

BE

2015
Zg-1f
HKS$'000
AMFT

Hong Kong
)

2015

—E-1f

HKS$'000

E¥TT

2014
—Z-mF
HK$'000
EHFr

2014
—3-n%
HK$'000
BT

2014
= ik
HK$000

BRFR

2014
“3-mF
HK$000
BETR

2014
ZE-QmF
HK$000
BETT

2014
= L
HK$000
BETR

—E-1%
HKS$'000
E¥TT

(i) Revenue from i) HREF

external customers: u& A
Segment revenue: FEUAN:
Sales to external EFNR
customers BE 289602 3307454 420937 4252576 135685 92372 769 608426 336013 748785 - — 930316 9859613
(ii) Non-currentassets: (i) FHRHEE:

Non-curentassets  SABEE - — 30 1875674 - — M2 e 69627 78319 (21255 (4150660 2217945 2305732
The Group's geographical revenue and non-current assets FEBMBUARERBEEE R
information, excluding long term rental deposits, are (FTEREEHESZS)I2ARE
based on the locations of the markets and assets, TEREEZFRERDE -
respectively.

(c) Information about major customers (0 ETEEFZER

TER HEE-HREF(ZF -
ME: B\ AGEREBN KA
10% L £ o

No single external customer (2014: nil) contributed more

than 10% to the Group’s revenue during the year.

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH



Notes to the Financial Statements B} % 3R3% M5
31 March 2015 —&Z—FHF=HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net

WA - H AW AR W
WA FRAEEEEE BNREER
ESRMg o HERRFE  REUKRS

invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

trade discounts; the value of services rendered and franchise

and royalty income.

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

MEENSTFREERERNKA -

WA BB ARKRESFTWT

Group
k-
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z2-MmF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T B F T
Revenue: WA
Sale of goods HEEm 9,279,052 9,777,308
Rendering of services 12 it iR 75 38,307 76,519
Franchise and royalty income B EERERNWA 4,957 5,786
9,322,316 9,859,613
Other income and gains: Htt g A R & -
Interest income F E WA 185,543 171,141
Net fair value gains on foreign SNESTESRMIADNAE
exchange derivative financial W% E R (M AT 23)
instruments (note 23) 33,617 47,216
Gross rental income on investment BRENEBSWR AL
properties 23,570 20,552
Compensation from suppliers for MR EESHEDEE
defective goods 11,401 13,810
Net fair value gain on investment REMELAARBEREFE
properties (note 14) (Btat14) — 23,274
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEW% WMEKRHER
plant and equipment Uk &= — 17,384
Government subsidies BB R 6,114 13,061
Sundry income HMIEUA 26,385 28,050
286,630 334,488
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBAGEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRBRADEMNS R (L) :
(crediting):
Group
&g
Notes 2015 2014
KsE —TB—HE —FT-—NE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories sold* CEEWZRA 6,144,692 6,578,395
Depreciation e 13 280,485 338,073
Impairment of items of property, ME- -BEKRKRE
plant and equipment 15 B E 13 — 13,563
Recognition of prepaid land lease JE LSS
payments T’ 15 682 685

Employee benefit expenses, including BERABEX  BIFESMN

directors’ and senior management'’s SREEAEME
remuneration (note 7): (K1aE7) -
Wages, salaries and other allowances T & - %4 R H 20, 1,447,661 1,481,800
Retirement benefit scheme RINERIE S
contributions H 7,030 8,793
1,454,691 1,490,593
Minimum lease payments under REHET 2L HWRETF
operating leases in respect of land REHSER
and buildings 525,596 646,339
Contingent rents under operating leases E&HE T2 HAE S 516,285 529,427
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A& 2,866 2,832
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain), ERERE(WH) F8E T~81F
excluding net fair value gains on SNESTESRBIA
foreign exchange derivative NRBEWRFERE
financial instruments 10,919 (635)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on BEMEIABEE(KFH)
investment properties” HER 14 7,912 (23,274)
Gross rental income on REMERSWALTE
investment properties (23,570) (20,552)
Less: Outgoings X 1,620 1,486
Net rental income HEWAFHE (21,950) (19,066)
(Write-back of provision)/provision for R&FE CE#FEMD) EH
slow-moving inventories (19,753) 52,018
Write-back of impairment of FE R BR ORI E B B
trade receivables 22 (23) (2,724)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME BERKEEER
property, plant and equipment” B () 1,730 (17,384)

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$546,616,000 (2014:
HK$625,899,000) of staff costs, depreciation, minimum lease
payments under operating leases and provision/write-back of
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these

types of expenses.

* These items are included in the “Other operating (expenses)/
income, net”/”Other income and gains” of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES
Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the predecessor the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Fees: e
Executive directors HITES
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES

Other emoluments: HihB < :
Executive directors: HTES:
Salaries, allowances and e BEER
benefits in kind FELEF
Performance related bonuses* RIEBATEAL*
Retirement benefit scheme RRERI ST BIHE R

contributions

* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to
discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain
percentage of the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

6.

R AR R (#7)

# EEEYZHRAPEOIZBEHE KK i
E KEHETZREBEHLEARR#FE
Ml EER BB 1 546616000T (=& — 1
£ JBI625899000T) IRl L EEE AR
FERERIR R o

* ZEHAEBHAGEBR RN HLEE (&
F) WA FELTREMKAR Kz ] -

EENEREBEAEMEREN
EEHHNES

EE=ME
BETRAUARERDAIGRA(E328)E
1611F  REEESHE 2 KENT :

Group
%E

2015 2014
—E-FHfF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BHF T
40 40
1,164 1,095
1,204 1,135
34,755 33,840
45,200 49,934
53 51
80,008 83,825
81,212 84,960

A RABITEEEETEBALART
BEEm LG ENNETH
BEEBPIES T REHHTEA -
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 7. EENEREBAEMERAN
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EeyMES @)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEWe (E)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITEZSE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNSXINFBILFEHATEEZ
during the year were as follows: wWEWOT :
2015 2014
—E-nf —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
Au Son Yiu ELR 388 365
Cheng Shu Wing SR8t 28 388 365
Law Brian Chung Nin EME 388 365
1,164 1,095
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER T/ (ZZ-—NF 8B
independent non-executive directors during the year VYHBITESIAHMBMS -
(2014: nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b)) HITEZE
The fees paid to executive directors during the year were REREZRNFHRTESzZHE W
as follows: T

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and Performance benefit
benefits in related scheme Total
kind bonuses contributions remuneration

Fe- 2R
RFERE KREAHH R EF
ik B/ A B RN B < 485
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT EBETFTT EETR BEFT BEFT

2015 —ZE-hF

Poon Bun Chak BWIE 10 14,413 23,460 — 37,883

Poon Kei Chak  &#2 10 9,655 9,370 17 19,052

Ting Kit Chung ~ TH# & 10 7.474 9,760 18 17,262

Poon Ho Wa B 10 3,213 2,610 18 5,851
40 34,755 45,200 53 80,048

2014 —E-NE

Poon Bun Chak &M #E 10 13,684 19,280 5 32,979

Poon Kei Chak  &#2 10 9,218 8,900 15 18,143

Poon Kai Chak EEE

(resigned on (R=—E—=%

1 May 2013) & F— HEHE) — 558 9,584 1 10,143
Ting Kit Chung T £ & 10 7,280 9,160 15 16,465
Poon Ho Wa BEE 10 3,100 3,010 15 6,135

40 33,840 49,934 51 83,865
There was no arrangement under which a director waived TEEERERNNESFSIREMS
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. IS8

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH @
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Senior management’s remuneration

Senior management’s remuneration for the year were within

the following bands:

EENEHREBEAEMEREAN
BESHEMNEE @

EREBAESME
AFEEXNOREBAEMESBRN T
gE

2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-—mE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 78 %5 6,500,001 7T £ 78 # 7,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 7815 4,000,001 T £ 7 ¥ 4,500,000 T — 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 78 %5 3,500,001 T £ 7 ¥ 4,000,000 7T — 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 78 53,000,001 7T £ 7 % 3,500,000 7T 3 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7 %5 2,500,001 T £ 78 #5 3,000,000 7T — 1

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid individuals employed by the Group during
the year included four directors (2014: five), details of whose
remuneration are set out in the “Directors’ remuneration”
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
one (2014: nil) highest paid employee, who is not a director of

the Company, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % - 2B R FEBELFF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K18 R 5t &= 5%

Non-director, highest paid employee’s remuneration for the
year was within the following band:

EIUBRSHMES
FEREUAEEESHFMA T EFERL
E(ZE2-—OmFREM) HFHAMAC
HRAUENESHME IR BT —L(=ZF
—OF B ESHFHESE(HLFAQT
BES)NERFEFHIBNT

Group
&

2015 2014
—E—-AF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
6,603 N/A & A
18 N/A & A
6,621 N/A TiE H

FEECXNIEERSTHNEENESE
RT 5 &R :

2015 2014
—E—RfF —E—mF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A Z A #

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 7 156,500,001 7T £ & ¥ 7,000,000 7T 1 N/A T iE
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEH

Group
m
2015 2014

—E-%% —z-mE
HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ZERAFRAEZWMEFEMRITERR

wholly repayable within five years BEXFE 23,935 33,016
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. HBiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBANGHERFARETBRB 2 M5
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in ERB GRS E165% (= F — W F:
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5%) IRIBEH - L HMMEMNERAE
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in BE DREANSEEBSERERER
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. BEZRITHETE -
2015 2014
ZE-5F —E-WEF
HK$’000 HK$000
B F T B F T
Group: £H:
Hong Kong and Mainland China: BB RPEKE:
Current year provision REFEE 69,922 73,702
(Over)/under-provision in prior years AFEREGERE) TR (935) 30,459
Deferred tax (note 28) BB E (ff L 28) 16,515 13,311
Elsewhere: Hibh =@ :
Current year provision REEEE 215 252
Over-provision in prior year FFEBEES — (169)
Tax charge for the year REEFHE 85,717 117,555

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH @
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9.

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate are as follows:

Profit before tax

BR 3 A % A

Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable RE AR BB A EZRBEN 2

to profits in the jurisdictions concerned E b R+ E N 1E

Adjustments in respect of current tax of L EFEEMNEHH ERAE

previous years

FE1 B & X BE R
BRHH WA
TAIMEB B R 2 & B

Profits attributable to an associate

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 10% on
the distributable profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries (note 28)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets on

(K&t 28)

aE

tax losses

BIHE IR 2 RERIELEB H

Tax losses utilised from previous periods 2 8 B 2 HIBE B

Others Hith

NEEBIE

Tax charge for the year

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to
HK$16,804,000 (2014: HK$17,817,000) is included in “Share of
profit of an associate, net of tax” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a
profit of HK$4,400,446,000 (2014: HK$399,029,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 31(b)).

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

10.

BiIE (#)
REAAAAREMBARNFEAERE
CERBATRR U E A ER R 2 B EH
FEHAFERERRERERHOT

AR 5 ] AP B Y U Y R AT R 0 TR
ERE10% ENB AN R

Group
-3
2015 2014
—E-—FEF —E-—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
B F T BT
858,248 707,007
172,262 131,416
(935) 30,290
(8,360) (13,156)
(111,057) (110,375)
23,934 28,378
17,979 13,705
24,781 44,848
(33,950) (8,188)
1,063 637
85,717 117,555

FE {1 B N R B 1B A 7B 516,804,000 7T (=
T — P& B%17,817,000T) EF AGZE
BRiRzZ/[EEBHELA N BRBEEF
B o

RAREBREERBEEREER

BE-_ZT-HEF=A=+—HLFE 7
AXKRRAZHBERERAZAQAALBER
Fr 7B & FE{h 4R & )5 7 5 78 £ 4,400,446,000
T (ZZF — M4 : #%399,029,0007T) (Fff&E
31(b)) °
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12.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

[ g=\

DIVIDENDS

Interim of HK26.0 cents HEA G IR B 15 26.01L
(2014: HK23.0 cents) per share (ZZE— 4 : BE23.010)
Proposed final of HK30.0 cents Bk R 2R 5 B B 15 30.01L
(2014: HK25.0 cents) per share (ZZ— M5 : BH25.01L)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 have been calculated as follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during that year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
share options into ordinary shares during that year.

1.

12.

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EBETFT
359,241 315,667
414,509 345,424
773,750 661,091

AEERRZAAREAGSEALOARER
MERTHRRBAFRSGLEBR -

BEALCAEBRREMAESR
AN
—E-AFZAZ+-AR-E-NE=
A=+-BLFEZEARBERZER
BRAHEMNT :

(@) EXSREFR
EXEBREBANNDEARDEEES
FMEEREZFERNRRZER
ERTEERZMETHIREEH -

(b) BEREREF
BERSRENDBRALCALBERE
BREERGEZFERNAHE - AR
HAEFRAERTEAERZMETY
REDGARFEERNERENZR
B RWRERZFRUEBETER
FERELSEERNMET IR -

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

12. BEALAEBEEEMBEESR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BF (&)

(continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are

based on the following:

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in

the basic earnings per share calculation

Shares

Weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year used in the
basic earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

Share options

Weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year used in
the diluted earnings
per share calculation

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue

during the year ended 31 March 2015.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

EXRBERCBRENFENT ¢

2014
—E—MEF
HK$’000
B F T

2015
—E-HfF

HK$’000
EETFT

2R
AT EBEESMEEREER

REFEERSRER

773,293 668,352

Number of shares

BHHE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E-|E
igvi)
REFEERAEBRBAZFEFRE
BITRMODMEFHRE

1,381,696,104 1,367,313,008

ez E —METIEER
PR

B R — 4,026,867

RETE#REREREN ZFERE
BITROMEFIRE

1,381,696,104 1,371,339,875

AEEREBE-_Z—EF=ZA=+—HL
FEANLECRITHNEEISIZEENG
B
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31 March 2015 —&E—HF=H=+—H
13. ¥ BERRKRE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group &£5F

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
Plant and office

machinery

land and Leasehold

buildings improvements

equipment

HELHR &M - £BR

BF
HK$°000

BETT

HEEFRE

HK$°000

BEFT

55 T 4
HK$°000

BETFT

MAERE
HK$'000

BT

Motor
vehicles and
yacht

EREE
HK$°000

BETT

Al
HK$’000
EBFT

31 March 2015 —E-AF
=A=+-—8
At 1 April 2014: R-Z—F
A—B8:
Cost or valuation RS (LB 1,425,853 775,846 3,171,143 272,101 99,427 5,744,370
Accumulated RAIINE
depreciation ERE
and impairment (635,618) (667,241) (2,330,912) (245,492) (82,805) (3,962,068)
Net carrying amount BREFE 790,235 108,605 840,231 26,609 16,622 1,782,302
At 1 April 2014, netof R=-ZT -
accumulated A—RA 21
depreciation MREFITER
and impairment WA 790,235 108,605 840,231 26,609 16,622 1,782,302
Additions ~E — 68,711 17,781 7,211 10,154 103,857
Disposals HeE — — (4,649) (1,069) (533) (6,251)
Depreciation provided — FRITE % E
during the year (note 6) (ff3£6) (55,188) (82,785) (124,508) (11,304) (6,700) (280,485)
Transfer from EEIEEA
construction (KtaE16)
in progress (note 16) — — 29,962 — — 29,962
Surplus on revaluation  E {4 B & 63,004 — — — — 63,004
Transfer to investment EZEREY %
properties (note 14) (K&t 14) (84,888) — — — — (84,888)
Foreign exchange INERE
adjustments (1,349) 2,972 (1,369) (38) (17) 199
At 31 March 2015, net of R=Z—h 4
accumulated =A=+-—-8"
depreciation 2R Rt
and impairment MERRE 711,814 97,503 757,448 21,409 19,526 1,607,700
At 31 March 2015: R-Z—HF
ZA=+—8:
Cost or valuation RAS G E 1,373,363 807,254 3,196,113 259,419 100,208 5,736,357
Accumulated RIIWER
depreciation bEREEN
and impairment (661,549) (709,751) (2,438,665) (238,010) (80,682) (4,128,657)
Net carrying amount REEE 711,814 97,503 757,448 21,409 19,526 1,607,700
Analysis of A GED N
cost or valuation:
At cost AR 1,359,761 807,254 3,196,113 259,419 100,208 5,722,755
At 31 March 1992 R—ARZF
valuation =A=+-—H
L& 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,373,363 807,254 3,196,113 259,419 100,208 5,736,357
EREEEERAT —ZE-HER



Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R =E
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ BERSZE@
Group (continued) £®:#E)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and office vehicles and

buildings improvements  machinery  equipment yacht
B RE

HELHR RPN E

BF AERTRE BEREM B AEREE a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT T BT BETT BT T BT T BETFT

31 March 2014 —E—NFE
=A=+-8
At 1 April 2013: R-ZEB-—=F
mMA—B:
Cost or valuation RAS G {E 1,448,428 755,487 3,099,736 275,924 97,585 5,677,160
Accumulated 25 E
depreciation (581,550) (555,942)  (2,190,205) (236,367) (84,665)  (3,648,729)
Net carrying amount IREFE 866,878 199,545 909,531 39,557 12,920 2,028,431

At 1 April 2013, netof RZ-ZZT—=%

accumulated A—HB B2
depreciation MREFHITE 866,878 199,545 909,531 39,557 12,920 2,028,431
Additions w"E — 40,928 72,591 2,737 9,726 125,982
Disposals HE (4,870) (3,966) — (738) (124) (9,698)
Depreciation provided FRITE %
during the year (note 6) (fzt6) (56,627) (117,239) (143,178) (15,111) (5,918) (338,073)
Impairment (note 6) WA (Kfate6) — (13,563) — — — (13,563)
Transfer from EEIRBEA
construction (KtEE16)
in progress (note 16) — — 56 — — 56
Surplus on revaluation  E {2 7,109 — — — — 7,109
Transfer to investment HEZREYHE
properties (note 14) (HtaE14) (22,800) — — — — (22,800)
Foreign exchange SMEFRE
adjustments 545 2,900 1,231 164 18 4,858
At 31 March 2014, net of A =Z — 4
accumulated =A=+-—-8"
depreciation 2R Rt
and impairment MERRE 790,235 108,605 840,231 26,609 16,622 1,782,302
At 31 March 2014: R-ZT—M4EF
=Z=A=+—-8:
Cost or valuation RASRAGE 1,425,853 775,846 3,171,143 272,101 99,427 5,744,370
Accumulated RFIHER
depreciation DEREEN
and impairment (635,618) (667,241) (2,330,912) (245,492) (82,805) (3,962,068)
Net carrying amount BREEE 790,235 108,605 840,231 26,609 16,622 1,782,302
Analysis of ARG E DA
cost or valuation:
At cost 22N 1,412,251 775,846 3,171,143 272,101 99,427 5,730,768
At 31 March 1992 R—ARZF
valuation =A=+-—H
& 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,425,853 775,846 3,171,143 272,101 99,427 5,744,370
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group (continued)

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings is as follows:

2015
—E—hF
1992
Professional
valuation
—hh=%F
HEME
HK$'000
BET T

Cost

B A
HK$'000
BT T

Medium term leasehold 1% & & /& 2 A &

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

13. ¥ BERRKRE®E)

£E(#E)

HELHWRBFONOT :

2014
—E=-NE
1992
Professional
valuation
—Wh=%F
HEME
HK$'000
BE T T

Total Cost Total

At
HK$'000
R

RS
HK$’000
BET T

At
HK$°000
B F T

land and buildings HELHR
situated in Hong Kong B3 13,602 83,399 97,001 13,602 95,067 108,669
Medium term leasehold R & B LI 2
land and buildings HEIHE L i
situated outside REF
Hong Kong — 1,276,362 1,276,362 — 1,317,184 1,317,184
13,602 1,359,761 1,373,363 13,602 1,412,251 1,425,853

During the year, certain leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were transferred to investment properties since the date
of change in use. Such leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at the date of change in use by APAC Asset Valuation
and Consulting Limited and Colliers International Valuation
(Taiwan) & Co., independent professionally qualified valuers at
an aggregate open market value of HK$84,888,000 (2014:
HK$22,800,000) based on their existing use. A revaluation
surplus of HK$63,004,000 (2014: HK$7,109,000) resulting from
the above valuation has been credited to asset revaluation
reserve.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings had been carried out as the Group
has relied upon the exemption granted under the transitional
provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, from the requirement to carry out future
revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were
stated at valuation at that time. Had such leasehold land and
buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$4,023,000 (2014: HK$4,459,000).

In the prior year, the directors considered that certain items of
property, plant and equipment of the Group were subject to
impairment because the related cash generating unit was non-
performing and suffered from substantial losses for the years.

REAFE AEEBHEELHRETF
RN EABREOEERRENE - S
HEtTHREFHEEEEERZE Y
BHEMEAEEFHREBRERAAR
BIEBRIAHEAEMBESSHEMERER
ERZENBERAZRAERZEAHEMEE
B 78 #584,888,000 T (=T — MW &F: B
22,800,0007t) - A L B rEE 2 Efh
Bt 5B 163,004,000T (= — [N F : 8
#7,109,0007T) Bt ABEELREER -

HHRPHEAETHREEFER-—NAA=F
BEVEEMEMETEG - AKEHE —
AA=ZFE UEHEHEI W REFTHE
E—SEHGHE RAEEZREBSHE
AIZE165 ¥ BERZFEESARBIE
MR BRAEEUERMGEEARNY
¥ MERIRBETNERBEEM M
ZEHELHWRETFEELRARESIN
Bk HIRMEEELN A ER4,023,0007T
(ZZ— U4 : B%4,459,0007T) °

RLEF BEERRLAEEETUE BE
RRBEEFFRE FREAHEBzZRE
EEBNRARE YRFAELEEKRE

Be

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH



Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 R =E

31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The directors estimated the recoverable amounts of the
“Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory”
cash-generating unit based on a value in use calculation which
was approved by senior management using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining
useful life of the respective property, plant and equipment. Key
assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 31 March
2014 were as follows:

Sales growth rate 0%-2%
Gross profit margin rate 41%-56%
Discount rate 10%

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross
profit margin rate based on the expectation of future market

development.

An impairment provision of HK$13,563,000 was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2014.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REAIREE
DABEREN(BHR),WRFE

(Ktate6)
B BERREBA

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Net (loss)/gain from fair value
adjustments (note 6)

Transfer from property, plant and

equipment (note 13) (KraF13)
Foreign exchange adjustments SEFDE
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

The investment properties with carrying values of
HK$363,960,000 (2014: HK$301,900,000) and HK$61,343,000
(2014: HK$47,532,000) are situated in Hong Kong and Taiwan,
respectively. As at 31 March 2015, the investment properties
consisted of 1 commercial, 13 industrial properties and 2 car
park lots in Hong Kong and Taiwan. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of asset, i.e.,, commercial and industrial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each
property. All investment properties are held under medium term
leases.
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ME- BERSE@E

EEMTZIEREGY2TERDHE IR
CE4ABUATREOSEFARERENR
Bt EES R EEEHECFREBRE
T BeREBEINERRESNE BE
RXESRTUERFH 2 EEETE -
R-E-NE=ZA=+—HEEHER

FIRAZEERBRROT :

HEERE 0%-2%
E R 41%-56%
Bh 35 2R 10%

EERBEEPRRTRABEEE LMHEE
BRERERER-

REBEE-Z-NMF=A=+-RALEE
W RESRCERZRERBRABYE
13,563,0007C °

14. BEWHE

Group
&5

2015 2014
—E—-RfF —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
349,432 304,349
(7,912) 23,274
84,888 22,800
(1,105) (991)
425,303 349,432

BR T {8 5 78 %5363,960,000 7T (=& — 0 F ©
7 %301,900,000 7T ) & % #61,343,000 T
(ZZ — M F B ¥47,532,000T) HIRE
MESFINREERAE R-_Z—1F
ZSA=+-8B REVEGEULNREER
BEZIVEEE£ET  BEIEXEFTR2E
B - REFREVEZHE AEKA
B ANBAEESRUREVELEMEES
EERNAR —EERIEEF - REY
X2 BRPPBEHEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2015 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates and APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. The investment
properties in Taiwan were revalued on 31 March 2015 based on
valuation performed by Colliers International Valuation (Taiwan)
& Co., independent professionally qualified valuer. Each year,
the Company’s board of directors decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group's investment properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s financial
controller has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results once a year when the

valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the investment properties:

14.

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

REWE @)

R-E-—FRE=B=+—-80 RAABEEH
REVMENREEEER B L NENE
EREALETARERERARAES
B - URAENRENEMBEELEYE
% 2B SR 8 T S o BB R B 7 1k 1 A
EBERMETEMR -SELANAZESE
RERANBEEMASHAEMIRE
MEETHIEE - WEEMZBEER
EHISAE B8 BUMRBERT X
EECHBRERGERRRGEELRS
E-RNEETENERRBEGEGE

1TEVE ©

REVMEDUEEHANBETE=E =4

EREN IR EI0) -

DRREER
THRUARENMENRAABTEER

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2015

R-ZB-AF=A=+t-HHNAAREFERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BERAHA
RERME EAAEE BN
MIRE B\ ABIE A&
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(2 —%) (=% (BE=%)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT B FT B FT B F T
Recurring fair value MUTEREEMSH
measurement for: NAREFE:
Commercial properties BHEEF — — 61,343 61,343
Industrial properties T¥EF — — 363,960 363,960
— — 425,303 425,303
BAEEEERAT —Z—LFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements B} % 3R 3% M5
31 March 2015 —&Z—FHF=HA=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

14. REYE @)
DABEER(E)

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2014
R-B-ME=A=+-ANAAENERA
Quoted
prices in

Significant

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BERAH
BEW
A& Az
(Level 3)
(B=%)
HK$°000

B FT

observable
inputs

active
markets

RIE R ™5
Y 3R B
(Level 1)
(8 —%%)
HK$’000
EBMF T

BAATEERE
B A B4
(Level 2)
(B=#)
HK$°000
B FT

HK$°000
BEFT

BRATHEEEER

Recurring fair value

measurement for: DRBEFE:

Commercial properties BEEF — — 47,532 47,532

Industrial properties THEF — — 301,900 301,900
—_ — 349,432 349,432

FR-F-REF-RZ2BELEEAAIR
EFEBENER TEREF=REANER

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3 (2014: nil). (ZE—WmEF |
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within SDEABECSRAAEERNAAENEY
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BE :

Commercial Industrial
Properties Properties
H¥EETF TERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T EBETT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 R-E-=FNA—-BEREE 49,849 254,500
Transfer from property, plant and BY¥ BERZEEA
equipment — 22,800
Net (loss)/gain from fair value AREABN(EBRE) WEHFE
adjustments (1,326) 24,600
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEFHE (991) —
Carrying amount and 31 March 2014 RZE-—NE=ZA=Z+—HRK
and at 1 April 2014 —E-NFNA—-AERAE 47,532 301,900
Transfer from property, plant and BY¥E BMEREZEEA
equipment 30,838 54,050
Net (loss)/gain from fair value DREARN(EE) WEFE
adjustments (15,922) 8,010
Foreign exchange adjustments IMNE FH B (1,105) —
Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 R-E-—RE=A=1+—HEEE 61,343 363,960
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARBEER(H)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the UTARENMEMEFTANBELRTERE
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: M AEENETE

Significant unobservable

Valuation techniques

BT %

inputs
EXRTABEN
[IPN ¢

2014
—E-OmF

Industrial properties Income approach Passing rent HK$4.4 to HK$4.3 to
located in (per sq.ft. and HK$18.0 HK$18.0
Hong Kong: per month)

TREBNIEEFT W&EE REHEE BHAATE BEAITLE

(B¥ARREBA) B #18.0T M 18.0 T
Market rent HK$6.0 to HK$18.0 HK$5.0 to HK$18.0

(persq.ft. and

per month)
miFHEE BHG6OTE BHESOTE

(B¥HREEA) B #18.0T B 18.07T
Term yield 2.5% t0 4.3% 2.5% to 4.1%
THHE W = 25%E4.3% 25%Z4.1%
Market yield 3.2% t04.6% 2.8% t04.0%
MG EE 32% £4.6% 2.8%Z4.0%

Commercial properties Income approach Passing rent HK$5.7 to HK$4.2 to
located in Taiwan: (per sq.ft. and HK$7.4 HK$12.0

per month)

TREENEEET: W&EE REHEE BHSTIE BEL2TE

(BF¥HBEREEA) BH747T B 12.07T
Market rent HK$7.4to HK$6.7 to HK$10.6
(per sq.ft. and HK$8.7
per month)
miEHE BEIATE BHeTILE
(B¥HBREEA) BU8.7 T B 10.6 7T
Term yield 19.0% to 23.0% 10.0% to 20.0%
AN == 19.0% £23.0% 10.0% £20.0%
Market yield 23.0% t0 28.0% 16.0% to 18.0%
5 W s =R 23.0% £28.0% 16.0% Z 18.0%
Market approach Market price (per sq.ft.) N/A HK$2,757 to
HK$4,528
mIHE mE@EFEAR) ~EA BHE2,757T T &
754,528 7T
Discounted cash flow Estimated rental value HK$6.2 to N/A
approach (per sq.ft. and per HK$11.1
month)
HEESLE S HEtHeEE BEE2TLE FEE
(BYHREREAR) BT
Rent growth (p.a.) 1.5% N/A
HERE(5E) 1.5% TiE A
Long term vacancy rate 0.0% t05.0% N/A
EHZzEER 0.0% £5.0% B A
Discount rate 3.5% N/A
B E 3.5% T A
BAEEEERAT —Z—LFRH
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The passing rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at term yield expected by investors for this type
of properties. The passing rents are assessed by reference to the
tenancy agreement of the investment properties. The term yield,
which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the leasing and sale
transactions of properties and adjusted to take account of the
valuers’ knowledge of the passing expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

The key inputs were the passing rent and the term yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the passing rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the term yield in isolation would result in a significant
decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

Market approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the
property interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which included the location, size, shape,
view, floor level, year of completion and others factors
collectively, to arrive at the market price per square feet.

The key input was the market price per square feet, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Discounted cash flow approach

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate is
applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs from
the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews,
lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net
operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value
anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term

vacancy rate.

14.
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REWE @)

BRASHEE

BRESRAESRELZ DABENKRALE
EEGYBEEZTERNNERAE
HERR(EEREEEERKLER) ETH
HomAESREHMERSEN—ERRS
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. AT HEER

Group
m
2015

—E—-FEF
HK$'000
BETFT

2014
—E-—MmEF
HK$°000
BT T

Carrying amount at beginning of year R E¥REE 22,666 23,345
Recognised during the year (note 6) FRNER (KiFe6) (682) (685)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEE 78 2 6 6
Carrying amount at end of year REREKR@E 21,990 22,666
Current portion included in prepayments, R B 2 H B R BN HIE ;TE£ K

deposits and other receivables Hith R W ER TR A (682) (682)
Non-current portion EREN I 21,308 21,984

MEzHEELHIUPRBAYETERLR
BELUIMETT

The above leasehold lands are held under medium term leases

and are situated outside Hong Kong.

16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIRE
Group
&5

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-WEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT
At beginning of year RERD 39,784 2,137
Additions nE 24,443 38,060

Transfer to property, plant and EEYE - BERSRE (KF13)
equipment (note 13) (29,962) (56)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEFE (106) (357)
At end of year RER 34,159 39,784

17. TRADEMARKS

Cost and carrying amount at end of year A FE R B A K BRE B

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

17. BHE

Group
m
2015

—E—-FF
HK$'000
BETFT

33,293

2014
—E-MmEF
HK$°000
BET T

33,293




18.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Particulars of
issued shares
held
BENERT
RHER

Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares

("Megawell”)

BEHBABRATF ZER
(TEED

Megawell, which is considered a material associate of the
Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the
manufacture of garments and is accounted for using the equity

method.

i EEFEE

18. RBEQTZ2RE

BENT2EMNT

Place of

incorporation

and business
EEaii)o AV
—ES

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
and Vietnam
&8, PE K&
5§ A=)

Group
S
2015

—E—-FEF
HK$'000
BETFT

96,182

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

2014
—E-—MmEF
HK$°000
BT T

78,937

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable to
the Group
AEEEEERE
B =

50

50

BAEKEERAT

Principal activity

EEXEK

Manufacture of

garments

MREE

BE WERLEHZIEHELR B
FEBMRAREENKEB AL IZEREA
IB\-EO

—E-nEH
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. RE QT 2RE #)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREJNFEBEMBRR 2T BEER
information of Megawell adjusted for any differences in ECHAMEFZECLAZE WD HEAF
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in EHERRPVEREYE:

the consolidated financial statements:

2015 2014

—E-HfF —E—NF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT BT T

Current assets RBEE 463,553 497,125
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,873 22,586
Current liabilities REBEE (283,589) (342,476)
Net assets EEFE 201,837 177,235

Reconciliation to the Group's interest ~ BEZAR & BAHE AT 2

in the associate: EmZHER:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N 52 B > # 5 #E Lt 4 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets BB E AR EEFH 100,919 88,618
Unrealised profit from sales to HETFTHEANRNEENARERFE
an associate (4,737) (9,681)
Carrying amount of the investment ZRENERHEE 96,182 78,937
Revenues ON 1,184,682 1,321,275
Profit and total comprehensive income ZRF E R R & H U A 2%
for the year 73,576 126,678
Dividend receivable FEU R B 20,000 60,000
19. BALANCE WITH AN ASSOCIATE 19. EEHE N TEER
The amount due from/to an associate is unsecured, interest-free B,/ NHEATDRDERE BEFNER
and repayable on agreed credit terms. BIRWMETRAAER
20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 20, HEZNHHRE

Group
&m
2015 2014

—g-5f —g-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
EMF T BEFT

Listed investments, at amortised cost EHHERE  BREBERR

— Hong Kong — &8 — 3,816
— Elsewhere —HiuihE — 65,061
— 68,877
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21.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS (continued)

At 31 March 2014, the investments had an aggregate nominal
value of HK$68,555,000, and bore interest at 4.5%-6.8% per
annum. The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity investments
was computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate method of any difference between
the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. At the
end of the reporting period, the fair values of the held-to-
maturity investments were not materially different from their

carrying amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments were either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R R
Work in progress TEHER
Finished goods S m
Consumables FERYR

20.

21.

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

BFEIHNERE @)
RZE-WNFEF=ZA=+—H ZEREWN
& st HE{E & 58 68,555,000 * FF R A
45%68%  IFEEHHNBEEZCEHEN
AW EDRIBEREIANSEREZCEBE
WA BMERREFEAERRELE
NRERSEHINPASECEZEMNRL
HMEENE - RBREHR SEHHR
ENAAEHEEFEAEIESEAER -

ZEZIPNREVEAHRAE B
REZIFPNRETNEMEEHYEE
FRESRE WK AEE -

FE
Group
5
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETF T
754,095 689,873
80,098 92,427
950,689 1,013,622
82,590 102,470
1,867,472 1,898,392
BAEEEERLIA —ZE-AFH
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 22. FEUERF - FE(TFHIE T2 R H b
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FE 1 BR =K
Group Company
£ AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Ef Z—EF-ONOF ZE-HF Z—ZT-@NOF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEF T BT T EBEF T BT T
Trade receivables FE U BR 3K 707,337 632,344 — —
Impairment RAE (9,763) (9,786) — —
697,574 622,558 — —
Prepayments, deposits and FEMRIE 5l K
other receivables H fth & W BR X 517,507 424,035 201 201
1,215,081 1,046,593 201 201
Except for trade receivables as detailed below, none of the BRTXHFRWERERRS B|BLEBEE

above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group
under documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain
strict credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a
policy to manage its credit risk. Since the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
impairment of HK$9,763,000 (2014: HK$9,786,000), is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

0B R
90 H X £
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CEMREE RSP EENTE
B E T BRI 30 4 R Y A2 8RB0 FE U AR

=)
Koo

AEEEFEIERIBIANREIZEIBRERE
BENIOR] HhBEEXREH R UEAMN
HAREETRS - AEBHERFRE
E-EBREERFNENEEFERR - A
RAEEERUEREBERSZEF  BUY
BEANEFEETRER FAEELEMRA
FEWERESRSEEMEARIE MR
FRZRE - BRERRBFME -

RBERR ZREAHRMNBFREBE
9,763,000t ( = & — M £ : & ¥ 9,786,000
) B2 EYIRFIRER AT ¢

Group
3

2015 2014
—®-EfF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT JBHF T
691,828 606,778
5,746 15,780
697,574 622,558
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

At beginning of year RERD

Write-back of impairment of FE U BR FOR B B =
trade receivables (note 6) (Krite)

At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$9,763,000 (2014: HK$9,786,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$9,763,000 (2014: HK$9,786,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not

hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

WIEBH T EERE
HHEI0E I
BHEI90H Bk

Neither past due nor impaired
Within 90 days past due
Over 90 days past due

P& U B X ()

22. EWERFR  FENRE -FT&kHEM

FEWRRSRERENZBNT

Group
&m
2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-—ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
9,786 12,510
(23) (2,724)
9,763 9,786

ELAERRABRERETEFEHERNT
R {8 FE U BR 7% 13 5 78 59,763,000 T (= &
— U4 B9,786,0007T) + 3% 4L FE W BR X
HERTE B 5 78 % 9,763,000 T (ZF — U £F :
7 #59,786,000 7T) © 5% L& A Bl & R B FE UL BR
HERTBIINRRIENNEE - AEH
WTERZSHEFEIMEFRREMIE
FIERNRE -

WRABEREZERNERZERR TN
T

Group
-
2015 2014
—F-1fF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BT T
655,039 595,486
39,031 12,262
3,504 14,810
697,574 622,558
BXEEEERAT —E—AFR
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RENIEESH
Assets EE
Liabilities &E

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$33,617,000
(2014: HK$47,216,000) were credited to the statement of profit
or loss during the year.
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23.

EWER BEARE -fTeRkEM
FE W B X (%)

A 3 0 39 7 45 L U BKOR 6 M
BEF REBRFUSTETARER -

Eal BEEFTREZRUREAS AR
FEBERFENRCHZEFPFAR BB
ARB ARAEZRLAREEEERER
FEARES® ZEEKNATE2HED .
AU EREHRERE FAEELERZ
EERERERR AFERAY -

fTEemIA
Group
&m
2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
16,407 7,754
11,104 5,655

AEBCHEITZERFEHUHAFEFESR
MWEBIEANUEEEERRR RF
N BLRBERPNFEHPIIESTEE
BEWNARBEEE A BY33,617,000T (=
— U4 : 47,216,000 7T) °
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24, BERBITER

Group Company
£ DF
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-Ef Z—EF-ONOF ZE-HF Z—ZT-@NOF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETF T BT BETF T BT

HERIBITER 343,278 373,540 402 196
Time deposits with original AT B =8 K %

Cash and bank balances

maturity within HMzEBER

three months when

acquired 1,132,575 5,722 — —
Time deposits with original AT B =8 U L

maturity of over B H 2 E B 7R

three months

when acquired 2,020,728 956,299 — —
Structured deposits with RETZB=ZEARE

original maturity within B EBEFR

three months

when acquired — 910,228 — —
Structured deposits with RETZB=@AUL

original maturity of B 2 B EER

over three months

when acquired 875,479 1,778,319 — —

4,372,060 4,024,108 402 196

RBEPR UELERBBEUARYEEEH
CRERBTER EHEAREEN

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include

cash and bank balances, time deposits and structured deposits

denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) of HK$280,093,000 (2014:
HK$283,241,000), HK$483,080,000 (2014: HK$546,831,000), and
HK$875,479,000 (2014: HK$2,688,547,000), respectively.

Interest rate on the structured deposits changes with reference
to changes in various currency exchange rates. Upon maturity,
the principal amounts of the structured deposits are guaranteed.
The Group uses the structured deposits primarily to enhance its

return on fixed deposits.

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

17 3 2 B & 58 % 280,093,000 T (=& —
4 @ 7 %5283,241,0007T) - 78 ¥ 483,080,000
JT(ZZ — 4 F : B #546,831,0007T ) &
& #£875,479000 (= T — M F: B ¥
2,688,547,0007T) ©

HEBHEFR 2N EESRAETRBEER
MeEXRMEEH REHPA  LEBUR
RZAERREN - FEEIREBER
MHER RESEHFEANEIR -

ARBRIBARETEEARIBREME
BoMREPEAAREONMEETEEMRE
E-EERNEEERE ~AEBEELEE
PEREETHIEXEBRZRTEARER
BRAEHMER-

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 24. RERBITER @)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily BITEARERESABRTERIZRIUEE
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for periods less than BEEXEJNE -EHERZERBAE —FHU
or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash T BRIAEEZHOBEBRESERME I
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective BEEEBEHERANZRNAE - BTHF
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time IR EHEFREREERTFNRIT -

deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. R
Group
£
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-IEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Trade payables AT ER X 995,646 892,173
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBERR REZEBHEBTRAKRER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DHWT
Group
£
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E-—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Within 90 days 0HMA 979,684 867,829
Over 90 days 90H UL E 15,962 24,344
995,646 892,173
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RBEBRR EAERAAFHER—HKE
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. 90 K WY BRHA ©
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HithEREZRESEE
Group Company
£H AFE
2015 2014 2015 2014
=F-1% =T-@mF =T-IHF =FT-@EF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Other payables HibEA R 243,700 213,260 47 —
Deferred income IERE R A 14,716 14,433 — —
Accrued liabilities EstaE 257,417 258,986 403 696
515,833 486,679 450 696
Other payables and certain accruals are non-interest-bearing HibENERER RO EHEERFME
and have an average term of three months. BE¥9ERMA=MEA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective

ELLGUE]

interest rate

(%)
ERFAE
(€9)
Current B
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — IR 0.72-1.75
Non-current FERE
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — IR AR 1.46-1.75

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year or on demand
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Maturity

FHA

within 1 year or
on demand
R—FR
RIRER

December 2016
to March 2017
—E-XF
+ZAE
—E—+tH5=A

/'\*ﬁ:
RITERERD -

27.

HK$°000

EBET T

1,748,298

158,328

1,906,626

R—FRAFEER

EZFER

FZEZERFABEERMF —

As at 31 March 2015, all bank borrowings are in Hong Kong

dollars, United States dollars or Japanese Yen (2014: Hong Kong

dollars or Japanese Yen).

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the Group’s banking
facilities were supported by corporate guarantees from the

Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

31 March 2015 —E—HE#=H=+—H
S ERITER

Effective
ELVE]
interest rate
(%)

BB FR =R
(%)

Maturity HK$°000

2R BETT

within 1 year or

0.85-1.72 on demand 1,502,453

R—FR
FIRER

June 2015 to
March 2017
—E-HFRAZE
—ZEZ—+H=A8

1.46-1.72 366,664

1,869,117

Group

%
2015 2014
—ET-mEF

HK$'000

BETF T

—E-REF
HK$°000
BETT

1,748,298 1,502,453
158,328 208,336
158,328

1,906,626 1,869,117

R-ZZ-RAFEF=RA=+—-H FiIBRTE
REYABY EZEARAR(ZE-—HF B
AT e

RZE-RAFE=ZRA=+—-ARZ=ZZ—MN&F
ZA=t-B AEEMNBRTEEDIAR
REAREHDHELOTEHEEEER-

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of
the Group's PRC

28. EEBEER

Depreciation allowance in
excess of related

subsidiaries depreciation Others
AEEHF
B 2 B ATt R BEHERTERR
i A B9 T B R okiie 37k Hity At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZZ2-HF ZE-QNF ZE-If ZE-NFf ZB-RF -“Z-NF ZEB-HF —E-0OF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
EB¥FT BETn B¥FT B¥Trn BY T BETT BY T BETT
At beginning of year READ 130,722 117,017 (721) (721) 4,189 4,583 134,190 120,879
Deferred tax charged/  E R ABE RS
(credited) to the Bk (L) K
statement of profit ERERIE (F17F9)
or loss during the year
(note 9) 17,979 13,705 — - (1,464) (394) 16,515 13,311
At end of year RER 148,701 130,722 (721) (721) 2,725 4,189 150,705 134,190

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$842,790,000 (2014: HK$776,207,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$284,518,000 (2014:
HK$409,980,000) and in Taiwan of HK$36,524,000 (2014:
HK$109,564,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which losses arose for a
maximum period of five years and ten years, respectively.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries of which no assessable

profits are expected to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Shares B 12
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-MEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each  2,000,000,000 & 45 A% [ &
in nominal value B #0.057T 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each  1,381,696,104 1% 5 IR E &
in nominal value & #50.05 7T 69,085 69,085
A summary of the transactions in the Company'’s issued share RABTERITRAREAZXRSGERMT :

capital during the years is as follows:

Number of Share
shares Issued premium

in issue  share capital account Total
2 #17T 28T [

BRHOHE % 7= i B B W
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B F T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2013 —E-=
A—H 1,363,566,104 68,178 600,898 669,076
Exercise of share TEBRE
options (a) 18,130,000 907 100,622 101,529
Transfer from share F B REREEA
option reserve — — 1,845 1,845

At 31 March 2014, RZZE—-—NF

1 April 2014 and =A=+—8-
31 March 2015 —E-NmF
MA—AK
—E-FHEF
=Z=A=+—H 1,381,696,104 69,085 703,365 772,450

Note: BT -

(a)  During the year ended 31 March 2014, the subscription rights @ R-IEFE-OAF=ZA=Z=1+—-HLFERK:
attaching to 18,130,000 share options were exercised at the 18130000 17 i1 5 33 S #E = fE IR 1 U & IR /B
subscription price of HK$5.60 per share (note 30) resulting in the 5607 2 RIE BT (K1aE30) - Bt
issue of 18,130,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal 18130000 A% &7 A% [E] 18 /8 #50.05 7T = & 38 IR L
value for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of RHIBR B = #8138 & (1B 498 #:101,529,000T
approximately HK$101,529,000. FLURAT o

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH @
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29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 28 August 2002 and had remained
in force for 10 years from that date, after which period no
further share options were granted but the provisions of the
share option scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit was subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, were subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, were subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options could be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board but is not more than ten years from the date of grant.
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B AR (47)

B8 B
ARRAZERETERBREZTBBRTS
BREZHEEHNORNTBREMNS
30°

BRESE
RABEN-—EAFE LT RAUFI7TEER
WERESFS(ZFH]) TZ2BNRM
HeERRBHAEELEENRUWELE
MOSRELTRBRBRMN - ZAAUFE
ERSEEGBEAQRAES(BEB L
BTES)RAEEHMES - ZFEBEX
HABR-ZEZE-FNAZ+NBEHZT
FR-ZHRBE REBRESSE—-
TRE EZBERESINGRENER
AEDBEYRIRBER -

A EAAHZBREARTIEREANRSE
RAEAQXBRMZFTEZBCHTRO 2
10% ° RAEME + =8 B H3 E A R 45 =% &1 &)
TEBERERSBRALTRITZROE
B RETEBAETAREzZALTCH#
TRO1% - ENE-—SREBBZREZ
BREXAERRNBRASHE-

BAATNESE THREARIETERER
BEXMBHEBEALIREBREXEESB Y
FHTESFELME B REM+=
BRAHEARN TANERERTFAATDEE
BRERIBYUFHTES AFESHEAL
BBAQTEETMAEEEEITRA01%R
BERELAROGREZETFAHZER
5T &) 8 8 % 5,000,000 T - HBFELER
RRBREREAZHAE -

BRECERTFALERERBEL 228
AXHRAEREBE 1T - BREZTER
HHESERTE BEHERTEBERAR
T2t &Ee
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share options was determinable by the
Board, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme at the end of the reporting period:

30.

2015

Weighted

average
exercise price
bR 1
TEER
HK$

per share

FREET

At beginning of year REA —
Exercised during the year F£RET{&E —
Lapsed during the year FREEXHK —

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

BRRESE @
BREZ(TEERHESSEE 15
BERUATZ2REE: )AD ARG NER
BRELSBEBIAZWTE: ()AL
RANBEEEISF AR BEEX
e EwmE: Rii)BReEEE -

BRELEBTSEEZARENENR
RBRRERENEF -

RBEBAR ZFETRTFEZBEREN
T

2014
—E-HF —E=-mE
Weighted
Number of average Number of
options exercise price options
b 1
BREHAR TREER BREZE
HK$
‘000 per share ‘000
HFRBE T F
— 5.60 18,320
— 5.60 (18,130)
— 5.60 (190)

Cancelled during the year % [y 2 BUH —

At end of year RER —

The weighted average closing price per share at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the prior year was
HK$7.45.

During the prior year, 18,130,000 share options were exercised
resulted in the issue of 18,130,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$906,500 and share
premium of HK$102,467,000, as further detailed in note 29 to
the financial statements.

EFRETENBRERTEE BN MNE
FHERETERBRETALST

A £ F R 18,130,000 17 BB AR #E & 1T F
BEHAQTERITEBRKRIS130,0008 &
18 0 57 BR 7 38 5 906,500 7T F IR A3 18 8 18
102,467,000 7T » =¥ 48 & B E 7 B 75 R MY R
29 °

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the prior year, 190,000 share options were forfeited and
cancelled upon resignation of employees, resulting in a
reduction of HK$285,000 in the share option reserve which was
transferred to retained profits.

At 31 March 2015 and at the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had no share options outstanding
under the Scheme.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company and the then nominal value of the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of
acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which
occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares in
1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain
eliminated against consolidated retained profits. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained
profits, arising from the acquisition of an associate prior
to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000
as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the principal
operation of which is conducted in Macau, is required to
appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit after
tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund. The reserve made
has fulfilled the statutory requirement accordingly.
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31.

BRRESE @

M EE R 190,000 58 IR # F & & BB W
PR W REGE BEAATMNEREEE
PR 8 43 ) 1R 68 3% R 0 36 2 38 ¥ 285,000 7T ©

R-ZEBE-RE=ZA=+—-BRABHHE
BRER RABAEZE T RBRER
AT -

#E

(a) &HE
REBRANFEFERBEIEENHE
CHEREPZEH I NGEEER
BERMA -

AEARARBE-NLA=F LD
ANEAR AEEZBHERALL
ACBITRAZEHERMBENE
NEARWBRBZERITRAEE
ZERE-

AEEBCESIHEBYBRELRES
FBEMKE AFR=_ZZE—FA
BENEBSHELENEEEENR
FERBEAFME R_ZZT—FH
METERERFE305EA  BHWE—
BENRNEENEE  NESNESE
REBEFF HEBER-_ZT-RF=
B=+—BRZ=ZZE—MNE=Z/F=+
— H &78%110,648,000 7T °

ﬁ#F*WF'EJP-ﬁ“iﬁ’ZF“ﬂ—%’éEEﬁ
MEBLE KERBREMBEFEER
BR#)BRAF EIEL{’FE/\\\W

BT FEFOMAETDOR25% MR
REBFZEERE BEZRBEH
HEZZRAANERETH50%  ZH A
NEBECEENERERNER -
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RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

Share
premium
account
&S

i B AR
HK$°000
B TF T

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE-—=FMA—AH 600,898

Exercise of share options 1T {3 i A% & 29 102,467
Cancellation of share BUE B IR

options —
Total comprehensive AEEZEBAEE

income for the year —

2013/2014 interim —E-=/-F-NEE

dividend FEIR R 11 —
2013/2014 proposed final —&—= /- —NEE

dividend BRARBRE 11 —

31. #H#E @@
(b) A

Share Capital

option redemption Contributed

reserve reserve surplus
1% iR #E BRA R
B BERE B2
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
B TT BMTT BETFR

Retained
profits Total
RE
s Rl k)
HK$000 HK$000
BEFT EBEFT

326,037 979,468

— 100,622

285 —

399,029 399,029

(315,667)  (315,667)

(345,424)  (345,424)

At 31 March 2014 and R=T-mFE=A=+—H
1 April 2014 ER-ZE-—mNENA—H 703,365

Total comprehensive AFEREBRALE
income for the year —

64,260 818,028

4,400,446 4,400,446

(359,241)  (359,241)

(414,509)  (414,509)

2014/2015 interim —B-NE-REE

dividend FHRE 11 —
2014/2015 proposed final —Z—0 =T —-HEE

dividend KRR E 11 —
At 31 March 2015 R-ZEB-HEF=ZA=+—H 703,365

2,130 1,695 48,708
(1,845) — —
(285) — —
— 1,695 48,708

— 1,695 48,708

3,690,956 4,444,724

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a distribution may be made out of the

contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

HEARBRODE-AAZFLHTANE
B ARAZERBHREAQACTBITR
FeEEEMUBHEARIRWBRAZS
HEEFHE2ZH -RBEFFE-NN -
FEREEEER) TRETHERTIRE

BERRE-

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. RMBARIZRE
Company
AT

2015 2014

—E-HE —ZE-MmF

HK$000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost FERBRB AR 48,908 48,908

Due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A A 4,879,257 783,928

4,928,165 832,836
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the investments BERULERHEB QT 2RE Y E WM
in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and have no BATRENEENF BINENEE TR
fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these FH - BEALE ZEERBEAEEXLQXTIR

balances are considered as part of the Company’s investments in HfB ARG ZREZ—E 5D

its subsidiaries.
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31 March 2015 —&E—HF=H=+—H
RHBRARZRE (#)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by

the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Trustland Inc*
Nice Dyeing Factory
Limited

KERBERAE

Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited

BAE(FE)RRERAT

Dongguan Texwinca Textile &
Garment Limited*

REBKEHABURERIE*

Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited*

e SR CRLPI B 75 A PR )
BRAF*

Texwinca Enterprises Limited
BAEEXRERLT

Win Ready Industrial Limited

KEEEERDE

Winlife Trading Limited
KEFTARRA

Baleno Holdings Limited*
e EBERAE

Baleno Kingdom Limited

WRBARAF

Place of incorporation/
registration and business
IR 3]
REXBH

British Virgin Islands
REWELHES

Hong Kong

it

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EMELHE BB

PRC/Mainland China

hE/hE AR

Macau

Hong Kong
it

Hong Kong

it

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
EMELHS

Hong Kong

it

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
SRTEE/
BRERE

US$18,000

18,000% 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$3,125,000

EERAEE1,000T
BRERELRAE
73,125,000 T

Us$1

1%

HK$2,557,950,000

7 #2,557,950,000 7T

MOP100,000

B P9 % 100,000 7T

HK$2
B2

Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$2

LTBRRABEI0T
BREBELERAE
B2

HK$15,903,100
7% 15,903,100 T

US$20,000
20,000 % T

HK$10,000

78#10,000 7T

32.

FRTrustland Incoh - FTEMIE A R BA LD
AEEEE - TEMBATFBNOT

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ADREGEERZ
AR
2015
“2-RfF

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

64

64

BAEKEERAT

—=—

2014
meE

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

64

64

Principal activities

TEXK

Investment holding

REER

Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn

HEHBAREY

Investment holding
and trading
of machineries

REZRRETKES

Production and sale of
finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
LERBEHBRREY

Procurement of raw
materials and sale
of finished knitted fabric
RBRM AR HEHEH

Provision of management
services

REERRY

Property holding

BREUE

Property holding
BEME

Investment holding

REER

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREHN2ZERDH

—E-RER



Notes to the Financial Statements B} % 3R3% M5
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RMBARZRE #)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business
EMRYL ER

REXMH

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
ERTER/
[RECERY &

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AAREGES
B E
2015
—E-RF

Principal activities

FTEXRK

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno PRC/Mainland China HK$103,800,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Co. Ltd.* of casual apparel
and accessory
BMNEEIRERGERAR* HE/ RE KR 7#1%103,800,000 7T ERROGN2TERDH
LERERREERAR* PRC/Mainland China US$200,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory
TE AR 200,000 7T EREHGNZEERDH
Beijing Xing Yu Baleno PRC/Mainland China US$500,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Garment & Decoration Co. Ltd* of casual apparel
and accessory
LRBEFHBHRERBERAR  HE/ FEAE 500,000 % 7T ERRBN2TERDH
Chongqing Dasheng Baleno Co. Ltd* PRC/Mainland China HK$3,880,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory
EEREHEERBERD A HELHE KB 78 3,880,000 7T EREGNZEERDH
KETHREREERAT* PRC/Mainland China RMB700,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory
hE E AR AR #700,000 7T ERRHONZEERDH
Silver Kingdom Limited* British Virgin Islands/Taiwan ~ US$1 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory and
property holding
REBARAA * KERZES A8 127 ERRBN2TERDH
REENE
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ us$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
Mainland China and provision of
franchise services
RUBRDF KERZHEE TEAE ES BHEBERRHRSFLEE
MR
Highrich Corporation* British Virgin Islands/ us$1 64 64 Provision of management
Mainland China services and sub-licensing
of trademarks
REERDA* KERZHEE TEAE 127 RUEERBRAEHE
R
Winca (Dongguan) Motor PRC/Mainland China HK$28,460,000 100 100 Provision of repair and
Service Limited* maintenance services
for motor vehicles
KERR)AELBERBERA T hE, HE KR 7 ¥ 28,460,000 7T RUREZEBERRERY
Successful Channel Corporation* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 64 64 Property holding
Mainland China
R BEEE* KERZHEES TEAE (EH BEME
HRVERREERA F* PRC/Mainland China RMB1,010,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
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32.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business
AR, B

REXME

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRTE]
[RECERY &S

RENCHEEEERAA* PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,880,000
HE PR KR AR 5,880,000 7
ROMEHREERD A* PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000
E RE KR AR #500,000 7T
BRF e B AR AR PR A R+ PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000
HE L RE KR AR % 600,000 7T
Excel Billion Inc.* British Virgin Islands/Taiwan us$1
KEBEBERDF* EMELHEE AL 127
KE R ERA R PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000
HEL HE KB 712,100,000 7
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company

ARREEERZ

R R

2015
—®-hf

64

64

64

64

64

* WHHZKENEBEERR ML KE

2014
—z-m&

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

31 March 2015 —&E—HF=H=+—H
32. RMBARZRE #)

Principal activities

ETERK

64

64

64

64

64

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory

ERRHNIEERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory

EREGN2EERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory

ERRHN2BZERDH

Sub-letting of property
HHEYE

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory

EREHNZEZERDH

ST EBPTEIR S — K S & -

EXRFIEAQRTZMBELRE  EERH
BREHAEBARFEZEEBRE
HARAFEBMEEFR L ETRIND -ES
AAFIFERBLAESSHRBEBERT

%o

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH

B/ 48
ge
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RIMBRARAZRE @)
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- AEBGEEARIEREZCHEBLATN
controlling interests are set out below: HERIIOT
Baleno Holdings Limited HeREBERQAE

Percentage of equity interest held by FIEREZEFEZREAERE DL
non-controlling interests 36% 36%

2015 2014
ZE-AfF —E2-MmEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
B F T B F T
Loss for the year allocated to FERERDELRFERSE
non-controlling interests (762) (78,900)

Consolidated accumulated balances RBEBFERER 248 R
of non-controlling interests at ®17
the reporting dates 233,616 230,673
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RMBARZRE #)

Baleno Holdings Limited (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information of the above subsidiary and its subsidiaries.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

Revenue

Changes in fair value of investment
properties

Total expenses

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Net cash flows (used in)/ from
investing activities

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

ek EBAERRDR (F)

WA
REMEQIAREZD

B HAE
REEBE
REERHEBRARE
RBEE
FRBEE
nREEE
FRBEE

REFBRERAFHE
REZHRES /) RAFE

MEZTBHRESRE FHE

RERREEBEW 2R FH

TRIRUEMBLARENEB QA2
EUBERNBE TRE 2 HBEREES
RSB R -

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-E
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
4,596,324 4,873,566
(15,922) (1,326)
(4,582,520) (5,091,407)
(2,118) (219,167)
(2,656) (215,133)
1,385,923 1,519,129
358,138 384,048
(1,032,444) (1,203,287)
(62,683) (59,131)
213,855 43,068
(73,951) 49,229
(170,475) (170,333)
(30,571) (78,036)
EXEEBERAT —T-HER
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. LA B4REXRME

CASH FLOWS FEHFRERS

Major non-cash transaction REZ-_Z-NEF=BA=+—-—HLEE
During the year ended 31 March 2014, certain items of property, RN HOWE-BMERZEEB LAR
plant and equipment which were disposed of for a total & 78 #£27,082,000t H HE- B F B
consideration of HK$27,082,000, included a deposit of 17,002,000 Tt W E WRET £ EFF AR ZE —
HK$17,002,000 which was received and recorded in other ZEE=ZA=+-BWHEHMESERRRES
payables and accrued liabilities as at 31 March 2013. No major BEF AFEIEFEFRERFH -

non-cash transaction for the year.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. ZEEE
(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities (@) RBMEHKR UTHEEBARANTKE
not provided for in the financial statements were as TP EME
follows:

Group Company
ES A
2015 2014 2015 2014

—®-HF -FT-WF -B-HEF -F-WNF
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
BEFT  BMTT  BETT  EETR

Bank guarantees givenin KB HEAYEZRES =

lieu of property rental BATHEAR
deposits 4,763 3,788 — —
Guarantees for banking BBMENTBRTEE
facilities granted to an FTE 2 R
associate 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Guarantees for banking BB ARRTEE
facilities granted to e 2 =R
subsidiaries — — 10,271,000 9,617,900
As at 31 March 2015, the banking facilities granted to R-ZE-—HEF=A=+—H KB
subsidiaries with guarantees given to banks by the AFREBHAARATE @RTEER
Company were utilised to the extent of approximately 2 R 1T RE E 49 & 8 % 1,972,575,000
HK$1,972,575,000 (2014: HK$1,945,009,000) and the 7T (=% — M : 8 ¥ 1,945,009,000
banking facilities granted to an associate with guarantees ) MBEARNAETRYARLAR
given to banks by the Company and the Group were not AEBECHRITEERRZRITEE
utilised (2014: nil). (Z2—m&F &)

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁi

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the prior years’ tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

The protective tax assessments for the years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 issued by
the IRD in March 2012, March 2013, March 2014 and
March 2015 are HK$69,125,000, HK$189,000,000,
HK$388,878,000 and HK$376,200,000,
directors of these subsidiaries believe that there are valid

respectively. The

grounds to object to the tax claimed. Subsequent to the
objections filed, the IRD agreed to hold over the tax
claimed completely subject to the purchases of tax reserve
certificates. The Group purchased tax reserve certificates
of HK$4,500,000 and HK$31,500,000 for years of
assessment 2005/2006 and 2006/2007, respectively, during
the year ended 31 March 2014, and an additional
HK$34,000,000 for the year of assessment 2007/2008
during the year ended 31 March 2015. Subsequent to the
year end, the Group purchased an additional
HK$38,000,000 for the year of assessment 2008/2009.

In view that the tax review for the years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 is still in
progress, the outcome of the case is still uncertain. Up to
the date of approval of these financial statements, the
directors of the Company consider that adequate tax
provisions have been made in the financial statements.

31 March 2015 =&

—AF=ZHA=+—H

34. EEE#E)

(b)

ERBBER (HE D) @45 B3040 K
BLAAREBRATFERB S HE
TE®Z-

BRA-ZZE—Z-—F=R -ZZ2—=%
=R ZE—NE=ZARKR=ZZE—HEF
ZSAR=-ZTER/-ZTTAR-F
EXR/ZBEL ZBEL/ZF
ENR=ZZEEN/ZZEZARBE
ERHREMEREFEINABY
69,125,000 7T * # *5 189,000,000 7T *
78 5 388,878,000 7T % 8 ¥ 376,200,000
ToZEMBLARESHEALZNE
BRETHRREERYE -RIEHK
ﬁéyﬁ%ﬂ B THN RSB

X EBBERE S AKEERE
§:§—.$:ﬂ:+_5¢¢f£
W BR_ZTTH —ZTETAKR=T
EXR/ZEELRBEESRNBE
% B % & %78 % 4,500,000 7T % 78 #
31,500,000t R ABE-_ZT—HF
ZA=+-HLFEER BR=-ZTZTt
S IEE N \RREEREMBSSE
75 #£34,000,000T c REZE B & K
SEBR-ZEN ZETAREUE
FE 08 B % T 2 © %878 %538,000,0007T °

TEEN/ZEEARBEERE
BERNEETH EEHNERDA
THB - BEATBERRERZER &
RABEEREVBERR P 2B ER
BEREHM-

BAEEEERLIA —ZE-AFH
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. REMEERH
(@) As lessor (a) fEHRBEBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) and AEBRBELEHETHERET
sublets certain properties under operating lease BREWEMZE14 REHRILHY
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging ¥ RFIHEB-—FZERF BB
from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally —REEHEFAMNRERERE
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and HORBEEETSEREHFELA
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the SHE

then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RIBEB KR NEBRBEBER L
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable ZAAHEEEHNESN 2AKRE
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: REWESEHEIBERMNT :
Group
k-
2015 2014
—E-—RE —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year R—FR 21,718 26,668
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE_ZFHFR
(BEERME) 11,069 25,247
32,787 51,915
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, a training centre and directors’ quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Such leases are
negotiated for terms of not more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR

In the second to fifth years, ¥-ZEIFR
inclusive (BIEEEMSE)

After five years REF#E

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or the contingent
rent based on the sales of the retail outlets pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitment has been included in the above table.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
commitments under operating lease arrangements (2014:
nil).

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

35. KeHELHm
(b) EBEBA

AEERBELEREZHEARANO
THREFAERE TEMIH - IF
AP LRESES - ZEHEIRTHE
HABEBRETEF-

RBEHRR  ARERBEEET Y
MAAHECERESNRREE
FEAEESABEIBERDT

Group
E3

2015 2014
—g-nfF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$000
BETFT BETT
555,666 560,848
624,551 670,797
462,326 572,627
1,642,543 1,804,272

BOZTEMm2KERANBES IR
B R HRIEEBEELQ PRz HK
RRGHREZEMMHEEEMET
ZHERBEMEP 2BSEFE - B
REZEBEFLEZEM D KRR
ZIHER M ERRTTABBERARAE
T MAFARBEESEE -

REBESHR AL AELLHER
AR (CE-—NEFE  HE) -

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARMAE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the REBNBERAREUTENM X HAIE
end of the reporting period were as follows:

Group
&
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E-—mEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT B F T
In respect of property, plant and BMOE - -BERREZHE EFH
equipment, contracted but BRREEE
not provided for 13,371 11,013
In respect of property, plant and BUE - BERRE S&E
equipment, authorised but not BRETHN
contracted for 54,619 78,710
67,990 89,723
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no capital RIBEER  KATAEEREAIE(ZE
commitments (2014: nil). —HE ) o
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37. RELATED
(a)
party

Sales to Megawell
Purchases from Megawell
Rental expenses paid to

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following related

transactions:

HETERE
mEERE
BAEEARXNETEM

related companies

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales to Megawell were made according to the prices and
conditions offered to major customers of the Group.

The directors considered that purchases from Megawell
were made according to the prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other customers by Megawell.

Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which
certain directors of the Company are also the directors and
beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
directors considered that the monthly rentals were charged
based on the prevailing market rates at the dates of
entering into the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’
remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial

statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided

certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to

Megawell, as detailed in note 34(a) to the financial

statements.

37. BEAERS
@ RER FAEEMGETATEEAL
28

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

et

(iii)

2015 2014
—g-H5F =—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BMTFTE BT
393,521 433,542
136,263 203,300
26,922 25,542

FEEZHEDREAFENTER
FIRHZEE RAFIFET L

EER RO ERIEZEERIFME
BB ERAME PR HAIEE

HE BRI FHERAERED
BBR PEAEZ NS R A EERE
& FEPIHREITFL - ZERA
ZEERBBRRTBAREZEHH
EE -BEERARGAZHELIREH
ERRFTAZ T SEREE - 14
ZEEEEHSEACEERESH
& WFHIRGEIRRMTT

o ARABARAEEREEELSE

FRITEEER FHERBRGHK
R M EE34(@) ©
BREEEERAT —Z-EFR
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2015, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advances of HK$15,910,000 (2014: HK$14,511,000) to
Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 2.6% (2014: HIBOR plus 2.6%) per annum.
The advances are unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

As at 31 March 2015, Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has provided advances of HK$253,646,000
(2014: HK$268,975,000) to Baleno Holdings Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, at an interest
rate of 2.4% (2014: 2.8%) per annum. The advances are
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

As at 31 March 2015, Dongguan Texwinca Textile and
Garment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has provided advances of HK$112,599,000
(2014: HK$255,006,000) to Guangzhou Friendship Baleno
Co. Ltd., a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, at
an interest rate of 4.7% (2014: 4.5%) per annum. The
advances are unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The principal purpose of the above advances is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. In the opinion of directors, the transactions
were entered into based on normal commercial terms
agreed between the relevant parties.
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37.

BEALRS @)

(b)

RZZE—HEFE=A=+—0 F27
CEEREMBLARKERKEAR
AABAEEZHEZEREEHEL
AMERERAGDRERHZEREBE
#£15,910,000t (=T — M F : B
14,511,000t) » FRXHFBRTE
EFREM26%(ZT—NEFE: FHBER
TRI¥IFEM2.6%) o ZE R EIK
RAREHEERAL-

RZE-FEHF=ZA=+—H ' 4A2F
2EREMB AT KERBR R
FRAERK)ERATOAEE ZHE
EFEWBARNEREEER
A T2 11 & T8 15 253,646,000 7T (=
£ — [0 £ : 78 #268,975,0007T) * £F
FMEHE24% (ZF —MF :28%) °
ZERUEIEFEREREERBE -

RZZ—RHF - AQA2EHEMH
BLAAREBXKEHAERERD
ANAEEEZEREHBRARE
MEEMEERGERLFAREE
8 #112,599,000 7T (=& — U 4 :
7 %5 255,006,0007T) ' FREE4T%
(ZZ— 5 4.5%) - ZERIEIK
RRERTERAL-

FPRERETEZRFUAEREEBR
RARHEWBLARZEEES - RE
E5R ARAALRERAEN-RE
ERRETRERS -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial
Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin Jiang Road 282-
286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution of apparel and accessory business of
the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2014 at the monthly rents of RMB1,045,000 and
RMB1,150,000 for the first year and the second year,
respectively. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$15,712,000 (2014: HK$15,147,000).

On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2014 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000. During the year,
the Group paid to Latex operating lease rentals in respect
of the above property of HK$4,800,000 (2014:
HK$4,320,000).

On 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited
("WLEL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun
Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and a parking space from
WLEL as a training centre of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2014 at the monthly rent
of HK$63,200. During the year, the Group paid to WLEL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$758,400 (2014: HK$504,000).
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) A non-controlling shareholder of Baleno Holdings Limited
had provided an unconditional guarantee to indemnify
the Group from any loss arising from the recoverability of
prepayments made to a supplier of the Group of
HK$4,696,000 (2014: HK$4,701,000) as included in the
balance of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

37.

Short term employee benefits EHEEER
Post-employment benefits B EA
Total compensation paid to FTEETEAEHTNARE

key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group refers to
the executive directors of the Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.

Rental expenses under (c) paid to related companies also
constituted continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
under the section of “Details of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors,
the remaining rental expenses paid to related companies
constituted continuing connected transactions exempt
from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 March 2015 = FE—AF=H=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. HEEEINEMIA
RBEMK SELBIAREEENT

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group &
Financial assets THREE

Financial

assets at fair
value through
profit or loss —
held for trading
RARETE

Loans and
receivables

BHEHZEHFTA
B
ERMEE—
BHEEE
HK$’000
BEFT

EXRK
A& &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETFT BETFT

Trade receivables FEWBR FX — 697,574 697,574
Bills receivable FEWEE — 219,021 219,021
Financial assets included in BERESRE T2

prepayments, deposits and REAMBERERAZ

other receivables EREE — 290,341 290,341
Long term rental deposits EHiESES — 91,183 91,183
Derivative financial assets TTEEMEE 16,407 — 16,407
Cash and bank balances BHERBITER — 4,372,060 4,372,060

Financial liabilities THEE

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss —
held for trading
A REE

BEZFHA
kY
TR E—
KFEHE
HK$°000
BT T

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

ABREY
=N
HK$’000
BETFT

&t
HK$’000
EBFT

Trade payables AR — 995,646 995,646
Bills payable B EE — 61,186 61,186
Due to an associate A& QA — 3,060 3,060
Financial liabilities included BEREMEMERERR

in other payables and EEERNZ

accrued liabilities cRaE — 247,911 247,911
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemAas 11,104 — 11,104
Interest-bearing bank borrowings K 2 847 & % — 1,906,626 1,906,626

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH @
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. IREBHEI S-SR T A (&)

Group (continued) 58 (&
Financial assets (continued) THEE (8B)

Financial
assets at fair
Held-to-  value through

maturity profit or loss — Loans and
investments held for trading receivables
LA RERE
BEZEFA
B
=k TREE— ERR
BB RE FIEEE EWFEIE a5
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BEFrT BEFrT BEFr
Trade receivables FEURBR X — — 622,558 622,558
Bills receivable EWEE — — 267,654 267,654
Due from an associate FE U B & N\ ) — — 22,966 22,966

Financial assets included in ~ BERENRE Tk
prepayments, depositsand ~ HthEWERFR A 2

other receivables EHMEE — — 213,329 213,329
Held-to-maturity investments = Z 2 IRE 68,877 — — 68,877
Long term rental deposits RS e — — 84,933 84,933
Derivative financial assets TTESREE — 7,754 — 7,754
Cash and bank balances HERIBITER — — 4,024,108 4,024,108

Financial liabilities THRERE

Financial

liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss — liabilities at
held for trading  amortised cost

UA R B

A
17 8 68 FR AR
SRBE— N Y
BEEE SHRAE &%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B M F T BHEF T BT T
Trade payables FE{TERRR — 892,173 892,173
Bills payable B EE — 72,105 72,105
Financial liabilities included in BEREMESERAR
other payables and EitaERZ
accrued liabilities cRAaE — 217,085 217,085
Derivative financial liabilities TEEHEas 5,655 — 5,655
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ff 24847 & — 1,869,117 1,869,117
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Company

Financial assets

Financial assets included in
prepayments and deposits

Dividends receivable

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accrued liabilities

38.

BEREAMRERTEAZ
TREE

9=

RERRITER

31 March 2015 —&E—HF=H=+—H
REESINEMIAE @@

AL

THEE
2015 2014
—E-—RE —E-mF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXRERFRE EXRREWRRIE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
52 52
— 400,000
402 196

kb
@1
W

2015
—E—FEF
Financial

2014
—ZE-MmF
Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost
12 88 B A
ARNERAE
HK$°000
B F T

amortised cost
R 85 A A
ARKNEREE
HK$’000
B F T

BERAtBENSRIRESSER

ZEMERE

60 60

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

39, ERMIAEZAAEBESER

FEBERMIACREER L AEGRE
BEHEAAAEEGEMBEEZEMIAR

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: SN EHIINT :
Group £ 5
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-hF —ET-NF ZT-HF —FE-—NF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Derivative financial assets TEeMEE 16,407 7,754 16,407 7,754
Held-to-maturity investments BREIHNRE — 68,877 — 69,256
16,407 76,631 16,407 77,010
Financial liabilities £ 3-Ri
Derivative financial liabilities TEEMEE 11,104 5,655 11,104 5,655

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, trade receivables, bills receivable, amounts due from
subsidiaries and an associate, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
bills payable, amount due to an associate, current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accrued liabilities approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department directly reports to the
board. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the long term rental deposits and interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions.
Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts, are measured using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

39.
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39, ERMIAEZDAAEBES &K@

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIBAEENESHIENAAETE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: Z4

Assets measured at fair value: RAREBETENEE

Group &£5F

Derivative financial

assets

Derivative financial

assets
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Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2015
R=-ZB-—HRFE=A=+—HMN

AREHBRA

Quoted

prices

in active
markets
RIEBRT S
Y 3R E
(Level 1)
(B—%)
HK$000
BT T

TTEEREE

Significant
observable
inputs
EXRTEE
TP E
(Level 2)
(B=#%)
HK$'000
BT T

16,407

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BERFABE
TP S E
(Level 3)
(BE=#)
HK$'000
BT T

Total
FER-C)
HK$’000
B F T

16,407

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014
R-ZE-—NF=ZF=+—HW

DAEFERA

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
AE IR T 5
B3R (B
(Level 1)
(8 —#%)
HK$'000
BT T

MTEEMEE

Significant
observable

inputs
ERAEE
LN - 7
(Level 2)
(B=%)
HK$000
BT T

7,754

Significant
unobservable
inputs
ERFAHE
PN ¢
(Level 3)
(E=#)
HK$000
BT T

Total
Bz
HK$’000
BT T

7,754
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Group

Derivative financial
liabilities

Derivative financial
liabilities

EEREs

39.

31 March 2015 —&E—HF=H=+—H
ERMIBEZDREE R E

HEE:

&

BARME

%8

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2015
R=-EBE-—HFE=A=+—HW

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
BB S
H ¥R B
(Level 1)
(—#%)
HK$'000

B FT

A

Significant Significant

observable unobservable
inputs inputs
ERATEE EXAFTAEER
TP E TP E
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B=#&) (B=4) ma
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B FrT BEFrT

11,104 — 11,104

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014
R-CE-—NE=Z=A=Z1+—HW

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
ASE BT 5
HRE
(Level 1)
(B—#)
HK$’000
B F T

DNAEFERA

Significant Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs
ERAEE
HETPNEEE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B=#%) (B=#) B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B F T B FT BETFTT

5,655 — 5,655

BXEEEARAT —E—HEH @
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 30. EWMIBEZAREBESER@
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no financial instruments R-ZEBE-RAF=ZRA=+—H AEELE
measured at fair value under Level 3. BRAAREFEFEF=Hze/MIA-
The Company did not have any financial assets and financial AAAR-ZE-—REF=ZA=+—BLEF
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2015 (2014: nil). M AABEFTEZEHREERERERS

(ZZ—F &) o

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - 2REERSHAEEYEREAAR
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BifEE—4REF R oBENER I8
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial RE=ZPEANSEL (ZE—NFE :#E)o

liabilities (2014: nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHREAAENEE:
Group £58

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014
RZE—NE=ZA=1+—HW

DNAEFERA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERTE EBEAATHERE ZEATAERE
WIRE HEARE M A B
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(8 —#%) (B=#%) (BE=%)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETF T BETF T BFT BT

Held-to-maturity investments £ ZZ| IR E 68,877 — — 68,877
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank borrowings, cash and bank deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivable, trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources
of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage this
mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.

40.
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31 March 2015 = E—HaF=HA=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s and the Company’s profit before tax
and equity (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

40.

BEEMEEEERBE @)

=@k (F)
TERRRTEBEEMEHMBENER
T AEBERARQ BT ANEF R EES
HEEBERUENFZZEH (FHILER
VB IR

Increase/
(decrease) in
interest rate

Group

E3
Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before

tax and equity

Company

P NN
Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before
tax and equity

B Bt A e Fll & BR B AR R &
F =@M, M M
O 2) O 2) O 2)
% HK$000 HK$°000
B2 BT T BT T
2015 —E—-HEF
Hong Kong dollar i 1 (18,879) —
Hong Kong dollar gt (1) 18,879 —
2014 —ET-NEF
Hong Kong dollar S 1 (24,626) —
Hong Kong dollar T 1) 24,626 —
Foreign currency risk S | B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEEFERSERAR ZERKBREK
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies EENUZENIEEB U2 EET

other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 29%
(2014: 29%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale, whilst almost 29% (2014: 32%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional

currencies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R &R Mz

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2015 —ZE-hfF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB LARBERE
against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BB AREAE
against RMB

2014 —=_mE

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB LARBERE
against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BB AREAE
against RMB

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial assets
are mainly well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 22 to the financial statements.
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S L B (AE)

TRRMTR|BERR EEERE H A
FENBRT  NEBOBRBAERRA
EENESHSERITENAREERS
H(HNEEUHEENEEIRENES)
MY SRR -

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before

tax and equity
FR B A 0% Al &
Rz M
(m 2)

Increase/
(decrease) in
exchange rate

B,
(B2)

% HK$°000
BEFT

1 2,198
(1) (2,198)
1 488
(M (488)

FERRE

FEBERAYREIAGFERFZE=ZER
ZoAEECHERARZEARTFERZ
EFRIGHERF RETBREZEESR
A2 o B oh - AN SR B35 A it BE BB LR
HAER ARAEBEYES X 2RRRAR -

FEBHEtBEREE(BERERRTAE
FOTEERTIA) 2FERREERSH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2015, 8% (2014: 20%)
and 92% (2014: 80%) of the Group’s total borrowings would
mature after one year and in less than one year, respectively.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

40.

BEEMEEEERBE @)

B R b
AEBEERMNARTEIRBITERU
FERAESHWEAMRBEEEMEBTE-
N-ZZE-—AE=ZRA=+—-H A&EFEAE
HHI8% (ZF—HF :20%) RNR% (==
—F :80%) D RIER —FER—FRE
By o

FEERBEBRNEREE EEEK
BREINNERERBENT :

Group &£ E
2015
“E-HfE
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total
=
REX =Z@EAUR TZ@AR —ZRE &%
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff 248 17 & 3 — 1,612,072 137,649 163,573 1,913,294
Trade payables FEAF BR X - 803,506 192,140 — 995,646
Bills payable ERER — 59,011 2,175 - 61,186
Financial liabilities included in ~ BEREMEFRZR
other payables and EitgErz
accrued liabilities tRERE 173,146 74,765 - - 247,911
Due to an associate BEBE QA 3,060 — — — 3,060
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeMEE — 3,400 7,178 526 11,104
176,206 2,552,754 339,142 164,099 3,232,201
2014
—T-mE
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total
==
REX =EAUR TZ@AR —ERE A%t
HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff 248 17 & — 1,215,885 301,895 371,955 1,889,735
Trade payables FE 1T BR 3R — 867,829 24,344 — 892,173
Bills payable EREE — 72,105 — — 72,105
Financial liabilities included in ~ BFREMEMETR
other payables and EitgaErz
accrued liabilities tRERE 137,100 79,985 — — 217,085
Derivative financial liabilities TEERER — 512 5,143 — 5,655
137,100 2,236,316 331,382 371,955 3,076,753
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

BEEMEERERBE @)

B 1 R B ()

2015
—E-—FRE
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
==
RER =BANRR +=@BAR &%
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEFT BEFT BEFT EBEFT
Financial liabilities included in BERETEERZ
accrued liabilities tREeE 60 — — 60
Guarantees of banking facilities AMBLATCEBART
granted to subsidiaries FEMEZER 1,972,575 — — 1,972,575
1,972,635 — — 1,972,635

2014
—ZT-WEF
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=2
RER Z=Z@ANMR +=@AR a3t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BYEF T BT T BEFTT
Financial liabilities included in BEAETEERAZ
accrued liabilities tHMEE 60 — — 60
Guarantees of banking facilities ANBLARCSBART
granted to subsidiaries BEEMEZER 1,945,009 — — 1,945,009
1,945,069 — — 1,945,069

Capital management

EXER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014.

FEEEAEERABRASEREALEE
Mg ANBEARENEHRES
HE UEEBEEMEERSERAER -

FTEEEEENERBURREBELERTRKN
EERERAE - AEETUNEBARYER
RIRENBRE BRRBVEELRARNBTH
BRURHAAREREB RBE-F—
AEF=A=+—HERZ-ZZE-HEFE=ZRA=+
—BLEFEER BEXAEENEEZ BXER
EELEEEo

BAEEMERAT —2-AEH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and bank balances, divided by
total equity. The Group'’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio

at an appropriate level.

Total interest-bearing debts M EER

Less: Cash and bank balances Nk :BERBTER
Total equity B

Gearing ratio (times) BEXBELEER

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 15 June 2015.
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41.

BEEMEEEERBE @)

BEXEE(E)
FEBEREREELREREL BX
EEREZNBRASRRITERROLN
EEBRUARSHE FAEENRKE
EHEFEREBHLEREGBENKRT -

Group
S
2015 2014
—B-HfE —E-—mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETTT BETF T
1,906,626 1,869,117
(4,372,060) (4,024,108)
(2,465,434) (2,154,991)
6,319,832 6,187,144
-0.4 -0.3
MBERRZZRE
AU BEHREENR-_ZE-AFATHBH
ELTERERRETE-
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